

# **ZKAccess 4.0 User Manual**

Version: 1.2 Software Version: For ZKAccess 4.0.18 or above Version Date: Mar. 2011

#### **About This Manual**

This document introduces the main function, the user interface and operations of the system. For installation, please refer to the Quick Installation Guide.

# **Table of Contents**

Definitions	i
1. System Instruction	.1
<ul><li>1.1 Functions Instruction</li><li>1.2 Basic Operation Flow</li></ul>	
2. System Management	.4
3. My Work Panel	.7
4. Personnel System Management	.9
<ul> <li>4.1 Department Management.</li> <li>4.2 Personnel Management.</li> <li>4.2.1 Add Personnel.</li> <li>4.2.2 Personnel Information Maintenance.</li> <li>4.2.3 Personnel Adjustment.</li> </ul>	10 10 12
5. Device Management	17
<ul> <li>5.1 Area Settings</li></ul>	18 18 22
6. Security System Management	27
<ul> <li>6.1 Access Control Time Zones</li> <li>6.2 Access Control Holidays</li> <li>6.3 Door Settings</li> <li>6.3.1 Door Management</li> <li>6.3.2 First-Card Normal Open</li> <li>6.3.3 Multi-Card Opening</li> </ul>	30 31 32 38
6.3.4 Interlock Settings	43 45
6.4 Access Levels.       4         6.5 Personnel Access Levels.       4         6.6 Real-time Monitoring       4	49

6.7 Access Control Reports	57
7. System Settings	60
7.1 User Management	60
7.2 Database Management	
7.3 System Parameters	
7.4 Log Records	
8. Appendices	67
Appendix 1 Common Operation	67
Appendix 2 END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR THIS	
SOFTWARE	76
Appendix 3 FAQs	79

# Definitions

**Super user:** The user who has all operation levels of the system, which can assign new users (such as company management personnel, registrar, and access control administrator) in the system and configure the roles of corresponding users.

**Role:** During daily use, the super user needs to assign new users having different levels. To avoid individual setting for each user, roles having certain levels can be set in role management, and then be assigned to specified users.

Access Control Time Zone: It can be used for door timing. The reader can be made usable during valid time periods of certain doors and unusable during other time periods. Time zone can also be used to set Normal Open time periods of doors, or set access control levels so that specified users can only access specified doors during specified time periods (including access levels and First-Card Normal Open settings).

**Door Status Delay:** The duration for delayed detection of door sensor after the door is opened. Detection is performed only after the door is opened and the delay duration expired. When the door is not in the "Normally Open" period, and the door is opened, the device will start timing. It will trigger alarm when the delay duration expired, and stop alarm when you close the door. The door status delay should be longer than lock drive duration.

Close and Reverse-lock: Set locking or not after door closing.

Lock Drive Duration: Used to control the delay for unlocking after card punching.

**First-Card Normal Open:** During a specified interval, after the first card punching by a person having First-Card Normal Open level, the door will be Normal Open, and will automatically restore closing after the valid interval expired.

**Multi-Card Opening:** This function needs to be enabled in some special access occasions, where the door will open only after consecutive card punching by several people. Before verifying, any card punching out of this combination (even the card belongs to other combination) will interrupt the procedure, and you need to wait 10 seconds to restart verifying. It will not open upon card punching by one of the combination.

**Interlock:** Can be set for any two or more lock belong to one access control panel, so that when one door is opened, the others will be closed. And you can open one door only when others are closed.

**Anti-pass Back:** The card holder who entered from a door by card punching must exit from the same door by card punching, with the entry and exit records strictly consistent.

i

**Linkage Setting:** When an event is triggered at an input point of the access control system, a linkage action will occur at the specified output point to control such events as verification, opening, alarm and exception of the system and list them in the corresponding monitored report for view by the user.

# **1. System Instruction**

# **1.1 Functions Instruction**

The security management is increasing concerns of modern enterprises. This management system facilitates customers to integrate operation of safety on one platform, making access control management easier and more reasonable, so as to improve efficiency.

#### System Features

1. Powerful data processing capacity, allowing management of the access control data of 30,000 people.

2. Visible and reasonable work flows come from abundant experience in access control management.

3. Automatic user name list management.

4. Multilevel management role-based level management secures user data confidentiality.

5. Real-time data acquisition system ensures prompt feedback of access control data to the management.

#### Configuration Requirements:

**CPU:** Master frequency of 2.0G or above;

Memory: 1G or above;

Hardware: Available space of 10G or above. We recommend using NTFS hard disk partition as the software installation directory (NTFS hard disk partition has the better performance and higher security).

#### Operating System:

#### Supported operation systems:

Windows XP/Windows 2003/Windows Vista/Windows7

#### Supported databases:

MySQL (system default)/MS SQL Server/Oracle

#### System Modules:

The system includes four major functional modules:

1

**Personnel system:** Primarily two parts: first, department management settings, used to set the Company's organizational chart; second, personnel management settings, used to input personnel information, assign departments, maintain and manage personnel.

**Device system:** Set communication parameters for device connection, including system settings and machine settings. After successful communication, the information of connected devices can be viewed, and such operations as remote monitoring, uploading and downloading can be performed in the system.

Access control system: WEB-based management system, enabling normal access control functions, management of networked access control panel via computer, and unified personnel access management. The access control system sets door opening time and levels for registered users, so that some users are permitted to unlock some doors through verification during certain intervals.

**System settings:** Primarily used to assign system users and configure the roles of corresponding module; management database, such as backup, initialization and recovery; and set system parameters and manage system operation logs.

## **1.2 Basic Operation Flow**

The following are the basic steps to use the system, based on the role of a super user. Different users have different operation levels, so the steps may slightly differ. The user just needs to follow the steps below and skip the items which are not displayed on your interface.

Step 1: Log in to the system to modify the default password of the account;

**Step 2:** Assign accounts and roles to system users (such as company management personnel, registrar, access control administrator);

**Step 3:** Set system parameters, database, notice, reminder and other frequently used system information;

**Step 4:** The user sets departmental organization chart refer to the organizational chart of your company;

Step 5: Input company personnel and conduct daily maintenance of the personnel;

**Step 6:** Set access control time zones and access control holidays (as access control exceptions);

Step 7: Add devices to the system, and configure the basic information of devices;

Step 8: Set parameters for access controlled doors;

Step 9: Set access levels to establish access control based on doors group and time

2

zones;

**Step 10:** Set the access levels of personnel by assigning personnel to access levels to decide which people can open which doors during which time zones.

# 2. System Management

#### 1. Log in to the system

After installing the server on the computer, the user can access the server through the network and use this system.

Open the browser and enter the server's IP address in the address bar. Press [Enter] to access the system homepage.

If you use the program at server computer, please open the [Server Controller] first, and start the service. Then double click the **[ZKAccess4.0 Security System]** shortcut on the desktop, the following homepage pops up.

**Note**: Please right click [Server Controller] and select [Run as Administrator] in Windows 7/Vista system.

3 7KAccess4.0 Security System - Login - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Bie Edit Yew Fgrontes Icols Belp	4
Agdress 🛃 http://172.168.10.100.0007/account.folgar/innext-sidetaipndes/	S S Unis "
ZKAccessA.0 Scenarity System	Andread Market
Shenzhen Zksoftware Biometric Identification Technology Co., Ltz     Copyright & 2515 2kSuftware Bio., All Biglits Reserved.	d. All rights reserved.

Before accessing the system, for system security, it is required to verify identity. We will provide a super user (having all operation levels) for the beginner of this system. Enter user name and password, and click [login] to enter the main interface of the system.

**Note:** The user name of the super user is [admin], and the password is [admin]. After first login to the system, for system security, please use [Modify password]

4

function to modify the password.

The super user can assign system users to company personnel (such as company management personnel, registrar, and access control administrator) and configure the roles of corresponding modules. For details, see <u>7.1 User Management</u>.

#### 2. Quit the system:

Click [Logout] button on the upper right corner of the interface to return to ZKAccess 4.0 homepage.

Or close the browser directly to quit the system.

After that, enter the [Server Controller] and stop the server, then quit the [Server Controller].

#### 3. Customize settings:

The user can use this function to customize the main interface. Click [Setting] to activate the Setting interface, and enter the following information: E-mail address, First Name, Last Name, and Language. Click [Confirm] to complete setting.

2KAccess4.0 Access Sec	urity System - Microsoft Int	ernet Explorer		
Ele Edt Yew Favorites	Iools Help			<b>*</b>
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.1	80:8087/data/worktable/			💌 🛃 Go Unis 🔭
	Device   Access Control			Help Modify Password @Logout ^
ZKAccess4.0				1001 447 mm 10
				TEST 20 and to
		Settings	3	k Panel] (Customize Work Panel) (2)
Daily Operation			k Start	
		E-mail Address: admin@sina.com		
Add Person	Issue Card	First Name:	raement	Step 5: Door Configuration
Add Department	Add Area	Last Name:	anagement	
* <u>View Reports</u>	* <u>Device Mon</u>	Language: English 💌	ettings	<ul> <li>Step 7: Personnel Access Levels Settings</li> </ul>
		Confirm Ouit	tings	Step 8: Real-Time Monitoring
		Committee		
4				×
Done				Internet

The modified system interface will change accordingly, such as the desired language.

#### 4. System user manual:

Press the icon to view the system help file. On each operation interface, a "?" icon will appear on the right top of the interface, indicating the help for the current page.

Click it to view the help file.

#### 5. Modify password:

The super user and the new user created by the super user (the default password for the new user is "111111") can use the [Modify password] function to modify the login password for system security. Click [Modify password], it pops up the edit Page. Enter the old password and the new password, confirm the new password and click [Confirm] to complete the modification.

TKAccess4.0 Access Sec	urity System - Microsoft I	internet Explorer		
Ele Edit Yew Favorites	Tools Relp			AT
Agdress 截 http://192.168.10.1	80:8087/data/worktable/			💌 🛃 Go 🛛 Links 🎽
	Device   Access Control			Help S/Modify Password OLogout 🛆
In Daily Operation • Add Person • Add Department • View Reports	* Issue ( * Add An * Device	, Old Password: Jere Password: Jere Password Confirmation: Confirm Could * Step 1: Hold are 5	art ent tement	Contorner Work Provid 20     Control of the Mill     Step 5: Door: Continuation     Step 6: Conside Access Lensis     Step 6: Conside Access Lensis     Step 6: Access Lensis     Step 6: Bask-Time Monitoring
<				×
Done				Internet



**Note:** The user name is case-insensitive, but the password is case-sensitive.

# 3. My Work Panel

After the user log in to the system, it will show the [My Panel] main interface, displaying common operation and other important information.

The default work panel includes the following modules:

**Common operation:** The user can rapidly perform some common operation here, as shown below.

thy Band Percencel Device Access Control System Welcome. ● Settings GHeeks (2)Modely Fastword ● Legost (ADDCESSED) (Persone Work Panel) (Customer work Panel)(① ● Access Control Quick Start (IN) ● dd Brasion • Issuel.Card ● dd Access Control Quick Start (IN) ● dd Access Control Quick Start (	2 ZKAccess4.0 Access Security System Microsoft Internet Explorer	
thy Band Percencel Device Access Control System Welcome. ● Settings GHeeks (2)Modely Fastword ● Legost (ADDCESSED) (Persone Work Panel) (Customer work Panel)(① ● Access Control Quick Start (IN) ● dd Brasion • Issuel.Card ● dd Access Control Quick Start (IN) ● dd Access Control Quick Start (	file Edit View Figvorites Icols Help	1
Control Control     Control Contro Contro Control Control Control Control Control Control Control Co	Address a http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/worktable/	💌 🛃 Go 🛛 Litter. *
	My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System  (MDDDDSSSEU	Vetrome.admin. © Extorgs © Halp 12/Mode Paisword © Légout * [Restore Work Panel] [Customize Work Panel][© © Access Control Quelck Start * Step 3. Ensemel Management * Step 3. Ensemel Management * Step 3. Ensemel Management * Step 3. Time Zone Settings * Step 3. Time Zone Set
	¢:	

Add Person please refer to 4.2.1 Add Personnel;

Card Issue please refers to 4.2.2 Personnel Information Maintenance;

Add Department please refers to 4.1 Department Management;

Add Area please refers to 5.1 Area Settings;

View Reports please refers to 6.7 Access Control Reports;

Device monitoring please refers to 5.3 Device Communication Management;

Access Control Quick Start: Follow the steps to enter corresponding modules for related operation, thus basically fulfilling access control functions.



Device management please refers to 5.2 Device Management;

Personnel management please refers to 4.2 Personnel Management;

Time zone settings please refer to 6.1 Access Control Time Zones;

Holidays settings please refer to 6.2 Access Control Holidays;

Door configuration please refers to 6.3 Door Settings;

Create access levels please refer to 6.4 Access Levels;

Personnel access levels settings please refer to 6.5 Personnel Access Levels;

Real-time monitoring please refers to 6.6 Real-time Monitoring;

#### **Customize Work Panel:**

Click [Customize Work Panel] on the upper right corner to pop up a dialog box. Cancel the tick of your undesired modules (all ticked by default), and click [OK] to complete setting. Now customized modules are displayed;

Or directly click the "-" icon on a module to minimize, and click " $\times$ " to close the module. Click the upper bar to drag and adjust its position;

To restore the original panel, click [Restore Work Panel] to refresh and return to the system default work panel.

# 4. Personnel System Management

Before using the system's access control management functions, first access the personnel system for configure: First, department management settings, used to set the company's organizational chart; Second, personnel management settings, used to input personnel, assign departments, and maintain and manage personnel. Then set access control.

# 4.1 Department Management

Before managing company personnel, it is required to describe and manage the departmental organization chart of the company. Upon first use of the system, by default it has a primary department named **[Company Name]** and numbered **[1]**. This department can be modified but can't be deleted.

Main functions of department management include add department and department maintenance.

#### 1. Add Department:

Click [Personnel] - [Department] - [Add department] to show add department edit interface:

Access4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer					- (5
Edit Yew Figvorites Icols Help					
85 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/Department/				💌 🔁 😡	Lir
Panel Personnel Device Access Control System Welcome KIGDGSSCIU Department Personnel Issue Card	,admin.	Settings	0 Help 12 Modify	Password OL	2 2
Pa Current Window: Personnel -> Department-> Add	¢	8	8	Refresh	
If a Parent department does not show in the select sit please contact yn system administrator to verify that you have authorization to add a new department to a Parent.	our		-1 company		
*Department Name: Check					
Parent Department:					
Save and Continue 🗸 OK. 🥝 Cancel					

The fields are as follows:

Department name: Any character, up to a combination of 40 characters;

**Department number:** If required, it shall not be identical to another department. The length shall not exceed 5 digits. Click [Verify] to see if repeated or not;

Parent department: Select from the pull-down menu and click [OK];

After editing, click [OK] to complete adding, or click [Cancel] to cancel it.

To add a department, you can also use [Import] to import department information from other software or document into this system. For details, see <u>Appendix 1</u> <u>Common Operation</u>. [Upper Department] is an important parameter to determine the Company's organizational chart. On the right of the interface, the Company's organizational chart will be shown in the form of department tree.

#### 2. Department Maintenance:

Department maintenance includes department edit and delete:

Upon change of department or organizational structure, the user can use [Edit] function to modify such items as department name, department number or upper department. Click department name directly or click the [Edit] button behind the department to access edit interface for modification.

To delete a department, click the check box before the department, and click [Cancel Department], or directly click the [Delete] button behind the department.

**Note:** A department can not be deleted freely. If so, the personnel under the

department will be pending, and some historical data will be unable to be queried. If deletion is required, please first transfer the departmental personnel to other department.

## **4.2 Personnel Management**

When starting to use this management program, the user shall register personnel in the system, or import personnel information from other software or document into this system. For details, see <u>Appendix 1 Common Operation</u>.

### 4.2.1 Add Personnel

Click [Personnel] - [Add] to show personnel profile edit interface:



#### The fields are as follows:

**Personnel No.:** By default, the length shall not exceed 9 digits. A number with a length of less than 9 digits will be preceded with 0 automatically to complete 9 digits. Numbers can not be repeated. Click [Verify] to see if it is repeated or not;

**Department:** Select from the pull-down menu and click [OK]. If the department was not set previously, you can only select the default [Company Name] department;

**Social Security Number:** Repetition is not allowed. Click [Verify] to check repetition. 15-digit and 18-digit ID card numbers are supported;

**Card Number:** Assign a card number to the person for access control use. This can be done manually or by using card issue. For details, see personnel card issue in <u>4.2.2 Personnel Information Maintenance;</u>

**Password:** Set personnel password. An access control panel only supports 6-digit passwords. If a password exceeds the specified length, the system will truncate it

automatically. If you need to modify the password, please clear the old password in the box and input the new one;

**Personal Photo:** The best size is 120×140 pixels, for saving space. For details, see upload personal photo in <u>4.2.2 Personnel Information Maintenance</u>;

Employment Date: By default it is the current date.

Access Control Settings: Select access levels, start and end dates of access validity time, multi-card opening personnel groups (Presetting is required. For details, see <u>6.3.3 Multi-Card Opening</u>);

Validity time is set for temporary access control, where the door can be opened only during this time period. If not ticked, the setting will be always valid.

After editing personnel information, click [OK] to save and quit. The added personnel will be shown in the personnel list.

**Note:** The number of a person, whether departed or in service, must be unique. The system, when verifying, will automatically search the number in the departure library.

The personnel information list, by default, is displayed as a table. If graphic display is selected, photos and numbers will be shown. Put the cursor on a photo, the particulars about the personnel will be shown.

### 4.2.2 Personnel Information Maintenance

The operations include Personnel Card Issue, Upload Personal Photo, and etc.

For such functions, you can directly click the personnel number in the personnel list to enter the edit interface for modification, or click [Edit] button under "Related operation" to enter the edit interface for modification. After modification, click [OK] to save and quit.

#### 1. Personnel card issue:

Assign card numbers to personnel, including batch card issue and individual card issue.

#### (1) How to use the card issuer:

The card issuer is connected to the PC through USB port. When the cursor is on the card number input box, punch the card on the card issuer, then the card number will display in the input box.

#### (2) Batch card issue:

Click [Personnel] - [Card issue] - [Batch card issue] to show the batch card issue edit interface;

ZKAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	- 🗆 🔀
Ele Edit View Figuentes Icols Help	2
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.0087/data/personnel/IssueCard/	Links 10
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System Welcome,admin.	ngout ^
ZNAMOSSSLD	
Department Personnel Issue Card	
Pa Current Window: Personnel -> Issue card ->Batch Issue Card	
The personnel to whom cards have already been issued will not appear when the personnel list is generated.	
Start Personnel No End Personnel No. : <u>Generate List Modify</u> Input Card Number: Remaining Card Quantity: 0 Number of Issued Cards: 0	m <u>Clea</u> r
a a	
Personnel No. Name Department Name Serial No. Personnel No. Name Department Name Ca	re i
✓ OE © Cancel	× 
a) Diterret	
N AND A AND	

Enter start and end personnel numbers (not longer than the system support max digits) to generate personnel list and show this all personnel without cards within this number interval;

Enter card number (or use card issuer for card issue). Each time clicking [OK], card numbers will be assigned to personnel in the list, until all personnel are provided with cards;

Click [OK] to complete card issue and return. Personnel and corresponding card numbers will be shown in the list.

#### (3) Individual card issue:

Click [Personnel] - [Card issue] - [Add] to show individual card issue interface;

Edit Yew Favorites Jools Help				
8 Mtp://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/IssueCard/				Go Li
Panel Personnel Device Access Control System	Welcome,admin. 🔶 Settin	gs ⊕Help SZModiń	y Password	Cogou
Meeessel		TEST12Failure		
Department Personnel Issue Card				
Current Window: Personnel -> Issue card-> Add			Φ	2
At present, inputing the card number manually and using	the card issuer are both supports	idl		
*Personnel:				
Card Number:				

Select personnel, enter card number (or use card issuer for card issue), select card issue date, and click [OK].

**Note:** A person can be issued cards for many times, and the last card issue will prevail. The system supports card issue through card issuer and by manually inputting card numbers.

#### 2. Upload personal photo:

Click [Personnel] - [Personnel], tick the personnel (only one person can be selected), click [Upload personal photo], enter the edit interface, click [browse] and select a photo, and click [OK] to save and exit.

TKAccess4.0 Acces	is Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer		
Ele Edit Yew Favo	when Iools Help		- 27
Agdress 🗿 http://192.16	8.10.180:8087/data/personnel/Employee/	 💌 🔁 😡	Links 10
ZKACCESS4	<u>0</u>		21
	epartment Personnel Issue Card		
	Current Window: Personnel -> Personnel ->Upload Personal Photo		
	Upload Personal Photo		
	Select Personnel(s):00000012		
	elect personal photo:		
	V DK O Cancel		
			~
< ଶ		 Internet	>
		a nan 160	.11

## 4.2.3 Personnel Adjustment

Personnel adjustment is daily maintenance of existing personnel, primarily including: personnel adjust department and delete personnel.

#### 1. Personnel adjust department:

Operation steps are as follows:

(1) Click [Personnel] - [Personnel], and select the person subject to department adjustment from the personnel list, click [Adjust Department] button, and the following interface appear:

2 ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Bie Edit View Figvonites Icols Help	<b>*</b>
Agis ess 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/Englioyee/	💌 🛃 Go 🛛 Links 🏴
250cccss4.0	9 2 2
Department Personnel Issue Card	
Re Current Window: Personnel -> Personnel ->Adjust Department	
Adjust Department	
Select Personnel(s):000000012	
*Adjusted Department:	
VOK O Cancel	
	1
	×
@ Done	Sitemet

(2) Select the department to be transferred to

(3) After editing, click [OK] to save and quit.

#### 2. Delete personnel:

Click [Personnel] - [Personnel], select personnel, click [Delete], and click [OK] to delete, or directly click [Delete] under "Related operation" of the personnel to delete.

**Note:** Deleting personnel also results in deleting the personnel in database.

# 5. Device Management

Access control panel to be connected to this system provides access control system functions. To use these functions, the user must first install devices and connect them to the network. Second, set corresponding parameters in the system so as to manage these devices via the system, upload user access control data, download configuration information, output reports and achieve digital management of the enterprise.

Device management primarily includes area setting, device management, and device monitoring.

# **5.1 Area Settings**

Area is a spatial concept, facilitating the user to manage devices in a specific area.

In the access system, after area setting, devices (doors) can be filtered by area upon real-time monitoring.

The system, by default, has set an area named [Headquarters] and numbered [1]. Area setting include add area and delete area.

#### 1. Add area:

Click [Device] - [Area settings] - [Add] to activate the add area edit interface:

3 /XAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer		
Ele Edit View Figvorites Icols Help		2
Address a) http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/Area/		💌 🛃 Go Links 🍟
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System   Welcome,admin. Settings	⊕ Help Se Modify P	assword OLogout
ZKACCCSS40	test11Failure	VS
Area Setting Device Server Sent Commands Device Monitoring		
🍽 Current Window: Device -> Area setting-> Add		9 🖗 🖬
*Area Code:		
*Area Name:		
Parent Area:		
Remarks:		
Same and Continue 🗸 OC 🥝 Cancel		
• 00		>
a) Cone		🔮 Internet 🦯

#### The fields are as follows:

Area Number: Repetition not allowed;

Area Name: Any character, up to a combination of 30 characters;

Parent Area: Decides the regional organization structure of the company.

After setting, click [OK].

#### 2. Delete area:

Select area, click [Delete area], or directly click [Delete area] under "Related operation" of an area, and click [OK].

# **5.2 Device Management**

Set the communication parameters of connected devices. Only when communication parameters, including system settings and device settings, are correct, normal communication with devices will be possible. When communication is successful, you can view the information of connected devices, and perform remote monitoring, uploading and downloading data.

To add access control panel, search and view devices connected to the network, and directly add from the searching result.

### 5.2.1 Add Access Control Panel

There are two way to add access control panel.

#### 1. Add device:

(1) Click [Device] - [Device] - [Add] to show the device information edit interface. The communication modes are TCP/ IP or RS485. The following interface will be shown:

#### TCP/ IP:

Current Window: Device -> Device-> /	add .	
he 'Device Name', the communication p letermine whether the correct type of a	arameters, and their r iccess control panels h	respective areas are mandatory. The system will verify the existence of device submitted by the user has been selected.
•Device Name:		
*Communication Mode:	C RS465	
*IP Address:		*IP Port No. : 4370
Communication Password:		
Access Control Panel Type:	Two-Door Access C w	+
Auto Synchronize Device Time:	2	
strea:		¥
Clear Data in the Device when Adding:	2	

IP address: Please enter the IP address of the access control panel;

**IP port No.:** In Ethernet mode, the default is 4370;

#### RS485:

*Device Name:		1		
*Communication Mode:	O TCP/IP I RS405	-		
"Serial Port No. 1		+485 Address: 1	*Baud Rate: 39400	
Communication Password:				
Access Control Panel Type:	Two-Door Access C	*		
Auto Synchronize Device Time:	2			
Area:		4		
ar Data in the Device when Adding:	2			

#### Serial port number: COM1-COM254;

**485 address:** The machine number. When serial port numbers are the same, there will be no repeated 485 addresses;

**Baud rate:** Same as the baud rate of the device (9600/ 19200/ 38400/ 57600/115200). The default is 38400;

Device name: Any character, up to a combination of 20 characters;

**Communication password:** Any character, up to a combination of 15 characters (No blank). You need to input this field only when you add a new device with the communication password. It can't be modify when you edit the device information except in [Modify communication password] operation. Please refer to <u>6.3.1 Door</u> <u>Management</u>.

**Note:** You need not input this field if the device has no communication password, such as it is new factory device or just after the initialization.

Panel type: One-door panel, two-door panel, four-door panel;

Switch to two-door two-way: When four-door panel is selected, this box will

appear. By default, it is not ticked. This parameter is used to switch the four-door one-way access control panel to two-door two-way access control panel (For changes of extended device parameters before and after switching, see relevant files of access control panel).

**Note:** After the four door one-way access control panel is switched to two-

door two-way access control panel, to switch back, you need delete the device from the system and add it again. When adding, do not tick the check box before this parameter.

**Auto synchronize device time:** By default it is ticked, namely, it will synchronize device time with server time each time connecting the device. If it is not ticked, the user can manually synchronize device time;

**Area:** Specify areas of devices. After area setting, devices (doors) can be filtered by area upon real-time monitoring.

**Clear Data in the Device when Adding:** By default it is ticked, namely, it will clear the data in the device after you have added a device to the system. All access levels will be cleared, but events logs will be left. If you add the device just for demonstration or testing of the system, don't tick it.

(2) After editing, click [OK], and the system will try connecting the current device:

If connection is successful, it will read corresponding extended parameters of the device. At this time, if the access control panel type selected by the user does not meet the corresponding parameters of the actual device, the system remind the user. If the user clicks [OK] to save, it will save the actual access control panel type of the device;

Extended device parameters: Such as serial number, device type, firmware version number, auxiliary input quantity, auxiliary output quantity, door quantity, and reader quantity.

If device connection fails, while the user still needs to add the device to the system, corresponding device parameters and extended parameters, such as serial number, will not be written into the system, and such settings as anti-passback and linkage will be impossible. These settings can be created only when the device is reconnected successfully and corresponding parameters are acquired.

Note: When you add a new device to the system, the software will clear all

user information, timezones, holidays, and access control levels settings (includes access control group, anti-pass back, interlock settings, linkage settings, etc.) from the device, except the events record in the device. Unless the information in the device is unusable, we recommend you not to delete the device in used, to avoid the

lost of information.

#### Access control panel settings:

#### **TCP/ IP communication requirements:**

Support and enable TCP/ IP communication, directly connect the device with PC or connect to the Internet, get the device IP address and other information of the device;

#### **RS485** communication requirements:

Support and enable RS485 communication, connect to PC through RS485, get the serial port number, RS485 machine number (address), baud rate and other information of the device.

#### 2. Add device by searching access control panels:

Search the access control panels in the Ethernet.

(1) Click [Device] - [Device] - [Search panels], to show the search interface;

(2) Click [Start search], and it will prompt [searching.....];

(3) After searching, the list and total number of access control panels will be displayed;

le Edit Yew Fgv	wites ∐ools Help							4
kiress 🕘 http://192.16	58.10.180:8087/data/	clock/device/					- E	Go Links
ty Panel   Person	nel Device A	ccess Control   System	m	Welcome,a	dmin. 🔶 Settings	⊕Help №Mo	dify Password	❷Logout
ZKACCESS4								
And the cosses	200	-				1.2		
		vice Server Sent Co						
	Current Windo	w: Device -> Device ->	Search Access Cont	rol Panels				
	Search for the	e access control pane	ls on the TCP/IP ne	twork.				
	Search							
	Search result							
_		r of access control pan						
	IP Address	<ul> <li>MAC Address</li> </ul>	Serial Number	Device Type				
	192.168.0.244	00:17:61:C0:00:0A	4032010100011	C3_100	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.12.145	00:17:61:18:00:17	612345	ACP	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	92.168.12.181	00:17:61:7F:2D:A5	20100501999	ACP	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.12.231	00:17:61:7F:2D:AC	20100501999	ACP	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.12.232	00:17:61:7F:2D:AB			Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	92.168.12.245	00:17:61:7F:2C:F4	51202146520	C3_400	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.12.252	00:17:61:18:00:59	1761808093	ACP	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.15.2	00:17:61:80:80:73	1761808073	ACP	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.15.3	00:17:61:18:01:E3	201008300136	C3_200	Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	192.168.88.22	00:17:61:7F:0A:68	2010070480069		Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	92.168.88.100	00:17:61:7F:0D:88	565632650001		Modify IP Address	Add Device		
1	92.168.88.102	00:17:61:7F:0D:AA	565632650002		Modify IP Address	Add Device		
	92.168.88.103	00:17:61:7F:0D:BC	565632650003		Modify IP Address	Add Device		



Note: Here we use UDP broadcast mode to search the access controller, this

mode can not exceed the HUB scale. IP address can exceed the net segment, but must belong to the same subnet, and need to configure the gateway and IP address in the same network segment.

(4) Click [Add to device list] behind the device, and a dialog box will pop up.Select whether you want clear data in the device after you add the device to the system. Enter self-defined device name, and click [OK] to complete device adding.

(5) The default IP address of the access control panel may conflict with the IP of a device on the Internet. You can modify its IP address: Click [Modify IP address] behind the device and a dialog box will pop up. Enter the new IP address and other parameters (Note: Must configure the gateway and IP address in the same network segment);

· A hate lines	.168.10.180:8087/data/	dark idea in al	_					💌 🎒 Go
	nnel Device A		Cushes		Malcoma	admin @ Catting	Outrie Children	ity Password QLog
								ay Password Co.
		_						
	Area Setting De	vice Serve	- Mo	dify Device IP Addr		8		
	Current Winds			al IP address: 192.1				
	Search for th			w IP address: 192.3	(68.0.244	-		
		e access com		Subnet mask: 255.2	55.255.0	-		
	Search		Gat	way address:				
	Search result							
	The total numbe	r of access co			Confirm	Out		
	IP Address	MAC Addre	55	Senal Number	Device Typ	e Coers	ition	
	192.168.0.244						Add Device	
	192.168.12.145						Add Device	
							Add Device	
							Add Device	
			DIAB			Modify IP Address	Add Device	
			C:F4			Modify IP Address	Add Device	
						Modify IP Address	Add Device	
						Modify IP Address	Add Device	
							Add Device	
			A:68			Modify IP Address	Add Device	
						Modify IP Address	Add Device	
						Modify IP Address	Add Device	
			D:BC			Modify IP Address	Add Device	

### **5.2.2 Device Maintenance**

Synchronize all data: The system will synchronize the data to the device, including door information, access control levels (personnel information, access control time zones), anti-pass back settings, interlock settings, linkage settings, first-card normal open settings, multi-card normal open settings and so on. Select device, click [Synchronize all data] and click [OK] to complete synchronization.

**Note:** The operation of synchronize all data is mainly about: Delete all data in the device first (except event record). Download all settings again, please keep the net connection steady and avoid power down situation, etc. If the device is normally

working, please use this function with caution. You can execute it at seldem user situation, to avoid the effection for the normal using of the device.

Delete: Select device, click [Delete], and click [OK].

**Edit:** Click device name, or click [Edit] under "Related operation" behind the device to pop up the edit interface.

If the communication mode is TCP/IP:

3 ZKAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Elle Edit View Figvorites Icols Help	At
Address a http://192.168.10.180:8087/data/klock/device/	🛩 🔂 Go 🛛 Links 🍟
My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System	Welcome,admin. Settings @Help St Modify Password @Logout *
ZNAccessian	TEST12Failure
Area Setting Device Server Sent Commands Device M	onitoring
Pa Current Window: Device -> Device-> Details	() 🚱 🖬
The 'Device Name', the communication parameters, and the the existence of device submitted by the user, and determin been selected.	ir respective areas are mandatory. The system will verify ne whether the correct type of access control panels has Log Entries
	Log Enthes
*Device Name: test11	
*Communication Mode:   TCP/IP  R\$485	
*IP Address: 192.168.0.102 *IP F	Port No. : 4370
Communication Password:	
Access Control Panel Type: Four-Door Access C Y	
Auto Synchronize Device Time: 🗹	
*Area: 1 ShenZhen 💌	
VOK O Cancel	
6	
Cone	Sinternet

If the communication mode is RS485:

3 ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Elle Edit View Figuarites Iools Help	2
Agdress 🕘 http://1102.168.10.180:8087/data/idock/device/	🛩 🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🍟
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System   Welcome.admin.	assword QLogout *
Area Setting Device Server Sent Commands Device Monitoring	
🄁 Current Window: Device -> Details	9 🕜 🖬
The 'previce Name', the communication parameters, and their respective areas are mandatory. The system will rent the existence of device submitted by the user, and determine whether the correct type of access control panels hi been selected.	hy is Log Entries
*Device Name: [TEST12 *Communication Mode: [] TCP/IP	
R\$405	
*Serial Port No. : COM1 *405 Address: 1 *8aud Rate: 30400	×
Communication Password:	
Access Control Panel Type: Four-Door Access C	
Auto Synchronize Device Time: 🗹	
*Area: 1 ShenZhen 💌	
✓ OK Ø Cannel	
	~
5	>
a)	Pinternet

For the meanings and setting of the above parameters, see <u>5.2.1 Add Access Control</u> <u>Panel</u>. Communication method, IP address, IP port number, 485 address, baud rate, access control panel type and area are not editable. Device name can not be identical with the name of another device. Since device type cannot be modified, if the type is wrong, the user need manually delete the device and add it again.

# **5.3 Device Communication Management**

#### 1. Commands sent by server

Shows the list of commands sent to the device by the current system. If the return value is  $\geq 0$ , execution is successful. If it is a negative, the execution failed.

	1.12.86/4	ata/idock/DevC	(md)			×	🔁 🐼 ເ
anel Personn	el De	vice Acce	ss Control   S	System	Welcome,ad	lmin. 💊 Settings 😔 Help 😒 Modify Password	d OLogo
Access4							
					Benders Marsharders	1.3	_
			_		Device Monitoring		
	Curre	nt Window:	Device -> Ser	ver sent comman	ids		Φ
	Sear	ch					
	De	vice Name:		Se	rial Number:	Returned Value:	
	Sear	sh 📾 Adva	nced 🛹 Clear				
		ommands •				Total 31 Entry/1 Page 🖲 💿 🖲	1
					Transmit time Return ti		
					11-03-02 16:26	OPTION SET DateTime=359051175	
	-	~~			11-03-02 16:23	OPTION SET DateTime=359050989	
					11-03-02 16:19	OPTION SET DateTime=359050755	
		52	1761808093	11-03-02 16:19	11-03-02 16:23	OPTION SET InterLock=0	
		52	1761808093	11-03-02 16:19	11-03-02 16:23	OPTION SET AntiPassback=0	
		6.9	1761808093	11-03-02 16:19	11-03-02 16:23	DATA DELETE inoutfun	
		26					
		52	1761008093	11-03-02 16:19	11-03-02 16:23	OPTION SET Door2MultiCardOpenDoor=0	
		52			11-03-02 16:23 11-03-02 16:23	OPTION SET Door2MultiCardOpenDoor=0 DATA DELETE multimeard DoorId=2	
		52	1761808093	11-03-02 16:19			
		52 52	1761808093 1761000093	11-03-02 16:19	11-03-02 16:23 11-03-02 16:23	DATA DELETE multimcard DoorId=2	

**Clear command list:** Click it to pop up the Confirm interface. Click [OK] to clear all items in the list of commands sent by the server;

**Delete:** Tick the check box before the command to be deleted, and click [Delete]. Confirm to delete the command.

#### 2. Device monitoring

By default it monitors all devices with the current user's level, and lists the operation information of the devices: device name, serial number, operation type, current status, commands to be executed, and progress, etc.



# 6. Security System Management

#### 1. Work principle of the access control system:

ZKAccess4.0 Security System is a WEB-based management system, realizing normal access control functions, management of networked access control panel via computer, and unified personnel access management.

The access control system can set the opening levels of registered users, namely, allowing some personnel to open some doors by verification during a time period.

It facilitates the management and support of multiple databases, including MySQL, SQL Server, and Oracle. Designed based on multi-business convergence, it supports service extension, such as attendance, patrol, and visitor management, etc., and supports multiple languages.

#### 2. Access control system parameters:

256 time zones;

- 256 access levels;
- Three holiday types and totally 96 holidays;
- Anti-passback function;
- Interlock function;
- Linkage function;
- First-Card Normal Open function;
- Multi-Card Opening function;
- Remote door opening and closing;
- Real-time monitoring via Web browser;

#### 3. Operation functions of access control system:

Click to enter the [Access Control System] and the main interface is [Real-time monitoring].

Access control system management primarily includes access control time zones, access control holiday, door settings, access levels, personnel access levels, real-time monitoring, and reports, etc.

## 6.1 Access Control Time Zones

Access control time zone can be used for door timing. The reader can be made usable during valid time periods of certain doors and unusable during other time periods. Time zone can also be used to set Normal Open time periods of doors, or set access control levels so that specified users can only access specified doors during specified time periods (including access levels and First-Card Normal Open settings).

The system controls access according to access control time zones. The system can define up to 255 time zones. For each time zone, you can define, in a week, up to three intervals for each day and three holiday types. Each interval is the valid interval in 24 hours of each day. The format of each interval for a time zone: HH: MM-HH: MM, this is accurate to minutes in the 24-hour system.

Initially, the system, by default, has access control time zone named [Accessible 24 hours]. This time period can be modified but can not be deleted. The user can add access control time zones, which can be modified.

#### 1. Add access control time zone:

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Time zones] - [Add] to access the time zone setting interface;

	//192.168.10.180:8087/data	lavaul	L. Terefa	al						Go Li
	ersonnel Device					Welcome.ad	tmin. 💊 Setti	ings 😣 Help 😏 Mod		
								10		0
KACCE	55410							TEST12Failure		
	Time Zones Ho	lictave	Door	Configuration	Access Levels	Rersonnel A	cross Levels	Real-Time Monitorin	Reports	
	_						coess ceres	Near Time Monitoria		
	Pa Current Wind	low: Acc	ess Co	ntrol System ->	Time zones-> /	Add			Φ	1
	The Ford Time of	and the	aur ha	are shorth so th	o Final Time of	uncert if hoth of	at time and or	nd time are '00:00'.		
			0,000	g						
	Time Zone Name:	bart 20								
	Remarks:									
				val 1	Inter			rval 3		
	Time		Time	End Time	Inter Start Time	Val 2 End Time	Start Time	End Time		
	Sunday									
	Monday	0	: 00	20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
	Tuesday	0	: 00	20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
		~	: 00	20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
	Wadaacday							00 : 00		
	Wednesday				00 : 00	00 1 00	00 1 00	00 : 00		
	Thursday	0	: 00	20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
	Thursday Friday	0	00	20 : 00 20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
	Thursday Friday Saturday	0 0 0	00 00 00	20 : 00 20 : 00 20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		
	Thursday Friday Saturday Holiday Type 1	0 0 0 0	00 00 00 00	20 : 00 20 : 00 20 : 00 20 : 00	00 : 00 00 : 00 00 : 00					
	Thursday Friday Saturday	0 0 0 0	00 00 00 00 00 00	20 : 00 20 : 00 20 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00	00 : 00		

#### The parameters are as follows:

Time zone name: Any character, up to a combination of 30 characters;

**Remarks:** Detailed description of the current time zone, including the explanation of the current time zone and primary applications, facilitating the user or other users with same level to view time zone information, which is up to 70 characters;

**Interval and start/ end time:** One access control time zone includes 3 intervals for each day in a week, and three intervals for each of the three access control holidays. Set the start and end time of each interval;

**Setting:** If the interval is Normal Open: Just enter 00:00-23:59 as the first interval, and 00:00-00:00 as the second and third intervals. If the interval is Normal Close: All are 00:00-00:00. If only using one interval, the user just need to fill out the first interval (such as: Normal Open), and the second and third intervals will use the default value of 00:00-00:00. Similarly, when the user only uses the first two intervals, the third interval will use the default value of 00:00-00:00. When using two or three intervals, the user needs to ensure two or three intervals have no time intersection, and the time shall not span days. Otherwise, the system will prompt error.

**Holiday Type:** There are three holiday types in the time zone. They are unrelated to which day in week it is. If certain date is set to certain holiday type, the three intervals of the holiday type will be used for access. The holiday type in a time zone is optional. However, if the user does not fill out, the system will give the default value.

For example, refer to the figure above. Set the access control interval of holiday type 1 as 8-20, the access control time period of holiday type 2 as Normal Open, and the access control time zone of holiday type 3 as Normal Close.

(2) After time zone setting, click [OK] to save, and the time zone will appear in the list.

#### 2. Maintenance of access control time zone:

**Edit:** In the time zone list, click [Edit] button under "Related operation" to access time zone modification interface, and modify time zone setting. After modification, click [OK], and the modified time zone will be saved and shown in the time zone list.

**Delete:** In the time zone list, click [Delete] button under "Related operation". Click [OK] to delete the time zone, or click [Cancel] to cancel the operation. The time zone in use can not be deleted.

Tick the check boxes before one or more time zones in the time zone list. Click the [Delete] button over the list, and click [OK] to delete the selected time zones, or click [Cancel] to cancel the operation.

# **6.2 Access Control Holidays**

The access control time of a holiday may differ from that of a weekday. For easy operation, the system provides holiday settings to set access control time for holidays.

Access control holiday management includes add, modify and Delete access control holiday.

#### 1. Add access control holiday:

Three holiday types are supported, each including up to 32 holidays. To conduct special access level configuration on special dates, the user can select special holidays for setting.

#### The operation steps are as follows

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Holidays] - [Add] to access add access control holiday edit interface:

3 7XAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Ele Edit Vew Fgvorites Iools Help	🗸 🛃 Go Links "
Address 🕘 http://192.166.10.180.0008/Jokafaccess/AccHoldays/ My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System Welcome,admin. 🗣 Settings 🖗 Help 😏 Modif	
Control Register Control Register Control System > Holdays > Add     Ext I JFahre     Time Zones Holdays     Control Window: Access Control System > Holdays > Add     Each holday trace cannot contain more than 32 holdays > Add     Each holday trace cannot contain more than 32 holdays A holday cannot last more than 365 days.	2
If a holdsylasts only one day, set is and side the same as the start date.         Annual cycle must the dates of a holdsy will not change over all years.         *Name: New Year         *Typo: Holdsy Type 1         *Start bate: 2011-01-01         *Find Date: 2011-01-01         *Annual Cycle: Yes         Remarks:         © Same and Continus         *Octoor	
6	
a)	Internet

#### The fields are as follows:

Holiday Name: Any character, up to a combination of 30 characters;

**Holiday Type:** Holiday type 1/2/3, namely, a holiday record currently added is belong to these three holiday types, and each holiday type includes up to 32 holidays;
**Start/ End Date:** Must meet the date format as "2010-1-1". The start date can not be later than the end date. Otherwise, the system will prompt error. The year of the start date can not be earlier than the current year, and the holiday can not span years;

**Annual Cycle:** Yes or No. The default is "No". Annual cycle means that a holiday does not require modification in different years. For example, the Near Year's Day is on January 1 each year, and can be set as "Yes". For another example, the Mother's Day is on the second Sunday of each May, so its date is not fixed, and should be set as "No";

For example, the date of the holiday "Near Year's Day" is set as January 1, 2010, and the holiday type is 1, then on January 1, access time control will not follow the time of "Friday" in week, but the access control time of holiday type 1, such as the access time control between 8-20 in 7.1 Access control time zones.

(2) After editing, click [OK] button to save, and it will appear in the holiday list.

#### 2. Modification of access control holiday:

To modify the original access control holiday, click [Edit] behind the access control holiday to access edit interface. After modification, click [OK] to save and quit.

#### 3. Deletion of access control holiday:

In the access control holiday list, click [Delete] button under "Related operation". Click [OK] to delete the holiday, or click [Cancel] to cancel the operation. An access control holiday in use can not be deleted.

Tick the check boxes before one or more holidays in the holiday list. Click the [Delete] button over the list, and click [OK] to delete the selected holiday, or click [Cancel] to cancel the operation.

# 6.3 Door Settings

Currently the system supports the connection and control of up to 50 access control panels.

The access control system is primarily for the management of personnel forbidden and admission. For security, a company will set personnel admission time zones, forbidden time zones and combinations of time zones. For door opening verification, First-Card Normal Open, Multi-Card Opening, anti-passback, linkage, and interlock can be set to enhance security. This system can provide real-time monitoring of doors and output of exception, access control events and access level reports.

### 6.3.1 Door Management

Click [Access Control System] - [Door configuration], and by default it will access [Door management] interface, showing the list of all control panels. When unfolded, it can show all doors under the control of the control panel. Upon first entry into the access interface or successful query, if currently the system has access control panels or the query result is not null, by default it will unfold the doors of the first access control panel. Click corresponding button for relevant parameter setting.

3 7KAccess4.0 Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Elle Edit View Figvorites Icols Help	<b>*</b>
Agdress 🕘 http://192.168.12.86/laccess/DoorSetPage/	🛩 🔁 Go Unis "
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System	Welcome,admin. Settings Help Modify Password OLogout ^
ZNAGOGSSAD	0 2
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access	Levels Personnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring Reports
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door C	nfiguration -> Door Management 🖤
Search	
Door Management Device Name: Access	Control Panel Type: 💌 Door Name:
Interlock Settings	
Modify in address •Close auxiliary output •Disable	More Total 1 Entry/1 Page () ( ) ( )
Anti-Passback	de Ip address Serial port no. 405 address Area name Status Enable sh
Settings  B 252 1761808093 TCP/IP	192.168.12.252 Area Name Ø Ø 201
Door number     Door name	Door active time zone Lock drive duration Punch interval D
	Issible 24 Hours 5 2 None
	Histophia State St
Multi-Card	
Opening Personnel Groups	
<	>
C	
e)	Diternet

Door management operations include: control panel management and door management.

#### 1. Access Control panel operation

For communication between the system and the device, data uploading, configuration downloading, device and system parameters shall be set. The user can see access control panels within his levels in the current system, and can edit the devices here. If the user needs to add or delete devices, operate in device management.

Control panel management includes: Modify IP address, Close auxiliary output, disable, Enable, Modify communication password, Synchronize time, Upload event record, Upgrade firmware, and Get event entries.

#### (1) Device profile:

Select device, click [Edit] under "Related operation". For Related details, see 5.2.2

Device Maintenance.

#### (2) Modify IP address:

Select device and click [Modify IP address] to show the modification interface. Enter new IP address, gateway, and subnet mask. Click [OK] to save settings and quit. This function is same as [Modify IP address function] in <u>5.2.1 Add Access</u> <u>Control Panel</u>. The difference is when searching control panels, the devices have not been added into the system, while the current [Modify device IP address] is regarding added devices.

3 7KAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Be Edt Yew Fgrontes Iools Beb	4
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.9087/acces/DoorSetPage/	🖌 🎦 Go Links
My Panel   Personnel         Device         Access Centrol         System         Welcome,admin.         © Sectings         Othelp         ZMody Pass           Ministry         Access Levels         Personnel Access Levels	1 2'
New IP Address: Subnet Masi: [255.255.0] Noatoway Address: ✓ OK. Ø Cancel	
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	>
ð) 🔹	Internet

#### (3) Disable/Enable:

Select device, click [Disable/ Enable] to stop/ start using the device. When the device's communication with the system is interrupted or the device fails, the device may automatically appear in disabled status. At this time, after adjusting Internet or device, click [Enable device] to reconnect the device and restore device communication.

**Note:** If the current device is in enabled status and the connection is not successful, and the user conducts enable operation, the system will immediately reconnect the device.

#### (4) Modify communication password:

Enter the same new password for twice, and click [OK] to modify the communication password.

ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer			
Elle Edit View Figvorites Icols Help			<b>1</b>
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.8087/laccess/DoorSetPage/		👻 🛃 G	
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System Welcome, admin. Settings	Help Modify	Password 🚱	Logout ^
7K4600554.0			21
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Levels Re-	al-Time Monitoring	Reports	
Current Window: Device -> Device ->Modify communication password			
The communication password can be up to 15-bit characters A void value indicates no passwor modification, the server will automatically synchronize the new password to the software.	rd. After successful		
Select Device(s):test11			
New Password:			
VOK O Cancel			
			~
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			>
<b>a</b>		Internet	

X Note: The communication password can not contain space, it is recommended

to use a combination of numbers and letters. The communication password setting can improve the device security, it is recommended to set communication password for each device.

#### (5) Synchronize time:

Synchronize device time with current server time.

#### (6)Get event entries:

Get event records in the device into the system.

Unit Server (a yourders) sola table     Arriver (a yourders) (both (a yourders))     Arriver (a yourders) (both (a yourders))     Arriver (a yourders))     Arriver(a yourder	2 /XAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
My Panel     Personnel     Device     Access Control     System     Welcomma.admin.     © settings     Uncertification     Control     Maccess Control     System     Velcomma.admin.     © settings     Uncertification     Control     Reports     Personnel Access Levels     Personnel Ac	Ble Edit Yem Figurates Tools Help	
	Address 🚯 http://192.168.10.180.8067/access/DoorSetPage/	Links **
Set event entries: © Get New Entries ○ GODODO ✓ OL: © Cancel	ZANDOCSSELD         Test IFAke           Tme Zones         Holdays         Door Configuration         Access Levels         Personnel Access Levels         Real-Time Monitoring         Reports           Image: Current Window: Device -> De	pout A
<	*Get event entries: ③ Get New Entries	
5 2	v os: ⊘Cancel	6
	< <li>(a) (b) Internet</li>	

Two options is provided for this operation, Get New Entries and Get All Entries.

**Get New Entries:** The system only get the new event entries after the last time event entries getting, and record them into the database, the repeated entries will not rewrite again.

Get All Entries: The system will get all of the event entries again, the repeated entries will not rewrite again.

When the network status is normal and the communication status between the system and the device is normal, the system will acquire event records in the device in real-time and save them into system database. However, when the network is interrupted or communication is interrupted for some reasons, and the event records in the device have not been uploaded into the system in real-time, this operation can be used to manually acquire event records in the device. In addition, the system, by default, will automatically acquire event records in the device at 00:00 each day.

Note: The access controller can restore up to 100 thansands of event entries,

after the entries exceed this number, the device will automatically delete the oldest restored entries (the default delete number is 10 thansands).

#### (7) Upgrade firmware

To upgrade firmware in the device, tick the device for which you want to upgrade firmware, click [Upgrade firmware], enter edit interface, click [Browse] to select the firmware upgrade file (named emfw.cfg) provided by us, and click [OK] to start

upgrading.

Note: The user shall not upgrade firmware without authorization. Contact the

distributor before upgrading firmware, or upgrade it when instructed by the distributor. Unauthorized upgrading may bring problems that affect your normal use.

#### 2. Door management:

The device list will show all access control devices. Click the "+" button before the device name to show the door list under a device. When adding device, it will automatically add doors (corresponding device name and door numbers can not be edited) according to the number of doors. Before using the device (including doors), the user must edit door information one by one (or apply current settings to other doors). After editing, they will be sent to the device, which can be used after successful setting.

#### (1) Door parameter modification:

Select the door to be modified, and click [Edit] under "Related operation" to show the Edit interface;

3 7KAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Ele Edit Vew Fgronites Icols Help	AT
Agdress a http://192.168.10.180:8087/access/DoorSetPage/	So Links "
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System We	Ncome, admin. • Settings • Help • Modify Password • Logout •
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Pe	rsonnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring Reports
🄁 Current Window: Access Control System -> Door-> Details	۲ 🕼
This door can be enabled only when the door Active Time Zone ha "None", the current status of the door cannot be detected during. The Repit his setting to all the doors of current access control pa allocated to the current users authonization settings.	real-time monitoring.
*Device Name:	TEST12
*Door Number:	1
*Door Name:	TEST12-1
*Door Active Time Zone:	test22 V
Normal Open Time Zone:	
*Lock Drive Duration:	5 s(0-254)
*Punch Interval:	2 \$(0-10)
*Door Sensor Type:	None
*Verify Mode:	Only Card 👻
Duress Password:	(max 0-digit integer)
Emergency Password:	(max 8-digit integer)
Apply this settings to all the doors of current access control panel:	
Apply this settings to all the doors of all access control panels:	
	_
<	>
<li>2 Done</li>	🔮 Internet

#### The fields are as follows:

**Device Name:** It is not editable (need to be edited in <u>5.2.1 Add Access Control</u> <u>Panel</u>);

Door Number: The system automatically names the numbers of doors according to

how many doors of the device (for example, the four doors of a four-door control panel are numbered 1, 2, 3 and 4). The number will be consistent with the door number on the device.

Note: Although by default the number following the underline in the door

name is consistent with the door number, but 1/2/3/4 in anti-passback and interlock refers to door serial number rather than the number following the door name, and they have no necessary relation, and the system allows the user to modify the door name, so they can not be confused;

**Door Name:** The default door name is "device name\_door number". The field allows the user to modify as required. Up to 30 characters can be entered;

**Door Active Time Zone**, **Normal Open Time Zone**: By default either is null. Initialized and added access control time zones will be shown for the user to select. Upon door editing, door valid time zone is needed to input. Only after setting door valid time zone, the door can be opened and closely normally. We recommend to set door normal open time period within the door valid time zone, only in this situation, the door normal open time zone is valid;

**Note:** Consecutive punching of a card having access level of the door for 5

times can release the normal open status within one day (including First-Card Normal Open), and close the door immediately.

**Lock Drive Duration:** Used to control the delay for unlocking after card punching. The unit is second, and the default is 5 seconds. The user can enter a number between 0-254;

**Punch Interval:** The unit is second (range: 0-10 seconds), and the default is 2 seconds;

**Door Sensor Type:** NO (door sensor not detected), Normal Open, Normal Close. The default is NO. When editing doors, the user can select the door sensor type to be Normal Open or Normal Close. If Normal Open or Normal Close is selected, it is required to select **door status delay** and whether **close and reverse-lock** is required. By default, once door sensor type is set as Normal Open or Normal Close, the default door status delay will be 15s, and by default it will enable close and reverse-lock.

**Door Status Delay:** The duration for delayed detection of door sensor after the door is opened. Detection is performed only after the door is opened and the delay duration expired. When the door is not in the "Normally Open" period, and the door is opened, the device will start timing. It will trigger alarm when the delay duration expired, and stop alarm when you close the door. The default door status delay will be 15s. The **door status delay** should be longer than **lock drive duration**.

37

**Close and Reverse-lock:** Set locking or not after door closing. Tick it for lock after door closing.

**Verify Mode:** Supports Only Card and Card plus Password verify modes. The default is Only Card. When Card plus Password mode is selected, make sure the door uses a reader with keyboard;

**Duress Password, Emergency Password**: Upon duress, use duress password (used with legally card) to open the door. When opening the door with duress password, it will alarm. Upon emergency, the user can use emergency password (named super password) to open the door. Emergency password allows normal door opening. Emergency password is effective in any time zone and any type of verify mode, usually used for the administrator.

**Duress Password Opening (used with legally card):** When Only Card verify mode is used, you need press [ESC] first, and then press the setting password plus [OK] button, finally swipe your card, the door open and trigger the alarm. When Card Plus Password verify mode is used, please swipe your card first, then press the password number plus [OK] button (same to normal door open in card plus password verify mode), the door open and trigger the alarm.

**Emergency Password Opening:** The password must be a number not exceeding 8 digits (integer). The door can be opened just by entering the password. Please press [ESC] every time before entering password, and then press OK to execute.

When using duress password or emergency password, the interval for entering each number shall not exceed 10 seconds, and these two numbers should not be the same.

Apply these settings to all the doors of current access control panel: Click to apply to all doors of the current access control panel;

**Apply these settings to all the doors of all access control panels:** Click to apply to all doors of all access control panels within the current user's level;

After parameter editing, click [OK] to save and quit.

## 6.3.2 First-Card Normal Open

**First-Card Normal Open:** During a specified interval, after the first card punching by a person having First-Card Normal Open level, the door will be Normal Open, and will automatically restore closing after the valid interval expired.

The user can set First-Card Normal Open for a specific door. The settings include door, door opening time zone and personnel with First-Card Normal Open level. A door can have First-Card Normal Open settings for multiple time zones. The interface of each door will show the number of existing First-Card Normal Open

settings. For First-Card Normal Open setting, when adding or editing each record, it is not required to modify the "current door", but to select time zone. When record adding is successful, add personnel that can open the door for a First-Card Normal Open setting record. On the right of the interface, you can browse door opening personnel in a First-Card Normal Open setting and delete current personnel, so that some personnel will not have First-Card Normal Open level any more.

#### The operation steps are as follows:

1. Click [Settings] under "First-Card Normal Open" of a door to show First-Card Normal Open setting interface;

3 ZKAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer			
Ele Edit Yew Fgvorites Icols Help			<b>A</b>
Address 🜒 http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/access/AccFirstOpen/?_lock=18door_jd=9		💌 🛃 Go	Links **
My Panel         Personnel         Device         Access Control         System         Welcome,admin.         6 Sets           ZIA 06035510         Tme Zones         Holdays         Door Configuration         Access Levels         Personnel Access Levels	ings @Help &/Modify testFailure Real-Time Monitoring		2
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> First-Card Normal Op The system does not allow this door to have repeated First-Card normal open setting in t	en Setting-> Add	Φ 🔐	0
*Currient Door: TEST12-1 *Time Zones: Save and Continue			
s		Internet	
		a normal	1

2. Click [Add], select the time zone of First-Card Normal Open, and click [OK] to save the settings;

3. Click [Add personnel] under "Related operation" to set personnel having First-Card Normal Open level.

3 ZKAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Be Edit Yew Favorites Iools Help	1
	Links *
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System Welcome,admin.   Settings @Help St Modify Password @Logo	ut ^
ZKEROGESS 4.D	
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring Reports	
R Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> First-Card Normal Open Setting ->Add an opening person	
Add a person with the First-Card normal open level	
Select First-Card Normal Open Settings(s):TEST12-1	
⊘ Search by Department. ○ Search by Personnel No./Name	
Select all Personnel in the Department	
Total 2 Entry/1 Page ( 1 ) ( 1 ) Selected Personnel (0)	
Personnel no. Name Gender Job title	
000000014	
000000012	
V DK O Cancel	
	~
4	>
<li>2 Done</li>	

Click [OK] to save and quit editing, the following interface appears.

3 ZKAccess4.0 Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Elle Edit View Figvorites Icols Help	47
Agdress a) http://192.168.12.86/data/access/AccFirstOpers/?_lock=18doorid=1	🛩 🔁 Go 🛛 Links 🍟
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System We	lcome,admin. 💊 Settings 🛛 Help 💱 Modify Password 🚱 Logout 🐣
2Macross40	
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Per	sonnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring Reports
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -	First-Card Normal Open Setting 🗘
Current Door:252-1	
Door Management Pirst-Card Normal Open Settings	Browse Opening Personnel
Add •Delete Total 1 Entry/1 Page # @ 3 # 1 #	Delete an opening person     Total 1 Entry/1 Page     O 0 0 1
Time zones opening personnel quantity Re Interlock	Personnel no. Name Card number
Settings Accessible 24 Hours 1 Edit Delete	000000001 1001001 1
Anto-Passback Settings	
Cinkage Settings	
Kata Andrew Andr	
e	> Sinternet
R	Sinternet

Note: For a door currently in Normal Open time period, consecutive punching

of a card having access level for the door for 5 times (the card punching interval should within 5 second.) can release the current Normal Open status and close the door. The sixth card punching will be a normal card punching. This function is only

effective at the door valid time zone. Normal Open intervals set for other doors within the day and First-Card Normal Open settings will not take effect anymore.

## 6.3.3 Multi-Card Opening

#### 1. Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups:

It is a personnel grouping. The group will be used for the setting of Multi-Card Opening.

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Door Configuration] - [Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups] - [Add] to show the following edit interface:

ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer		
Elle Edit Yew Fgvorites Icols Help		
Agdress 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/ActMoreCardEnpSiroup/	💌 🔁 G	
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System   Welcome, admin. Settings @ Help St Modify P	assword Q	Logout ^
ZMAGGSS40		
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring	Reports	
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups-> Add	Φ 🎯	
Multi-Card opening personnel groups are intended to group personnel, and each person can belong to only one group.		
*Group Name: Remarks:		
Save and Continue VCK 🔗 Cancel		
		~
	Internet	

**Group name:** Any character, up to a combination of 30 characters, which can not be identical with an existing group name;

After editing, click [OK], return and the added Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups will appear in the list;

(2) Select a group, and click [Add personnel] to add personnel to the group:

Edit Yew Fgvorites Icols Help				
Intp://192.168.10.180.8087/data/personnel/AccMoreCardEmpGroup/			💌 🔁 G	
Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System	Welcome,admin. 💊 Setting	s 😣 Help 😒 Modify I	Password OL	.ogout
MACCESS40		test11Failure		
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Acces	s Levels Personnel Access Levels R	eal-Time Monitoring	Reports	
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door C	configuration -> Multi-Card Opening Pers	onnel Groups ->Add R	Personnel	
Add personnel to Multi-Card opening personnel grou regroup a person, first delete the person from the o	ps. A person can only be added to one o iginal group.	group at a time. To		
Select Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups(s):test				
Search by Department ○ Search by Personne	No./Name	A		
Select all Personnel in t	he Department			
Total 1 Entry/1 Page 8 C 8 8 1	Selected Personnel (0)	. Stear.		
Personnel no. Name Gender 3ob t	tie			
000000014				
V OK 🕗 Cancel				

(3) After selecting and adding personnel, click [OK] to save and return.

**Note:** One person can only belong to one group, and can not be grouped repeatedly.

#### 2. Multi-Card Opening:

Set levels for personnel in [Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups].

This function needs to be enabled in some special access occasions, where the door will open only after consecutive card punching by several people. Before verifying, any card punching out of this combination (even the card belongs to other combination) will interrupt the procedure, and you need to wait 10 seconds to restart verifying. It will not open upon card punching by one of the combination.

If currently [Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups] is not configured, the system will prompt, and the user can only add combination name. The system permits the user to add a name-only combination, and to edit Multi-Card Opening combination when [Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups] is added.

Multi-Card Opening combination is a combination of the personnel in one or more Multi-Card Opening Personnel Groups. When setting the number of people in each group, you can configure one group (such as combined door opening by two people in one group) or multiple groups (such as combined door opening by four people, including 2 people in group 1 and 2 people in group 2), and at least one group shall be entered a number of door opening people not being 0, and meanwhile the total

number of door opening people shall not be greater than 5. In addition, if the number of people entered by the user is greater than the number of people in the current group, the Multi-Card Opening function will be unable to be realized normally.

#### Multi-Card Opening settings:

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Door configuration] - [Door management], click [Setting] under "Multi-Card Opening" of a door in the door list to show the Multi-Card Opening setting interface;

(2) Click [Add] to pop up Add Multi-Card Opening setting interface;

ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	1	
Ele Edit Yew Fgrontes Iools Help		
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/iaccess/AcdMoreCardSet/7_Jock=16door_id=9	💌 🛃 Go	Links **
My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System     Welcome.admin.      Settings      Help 12/MODOSSCUD     test IFAlue     Trime Zones     Holdays     Door Configuration     Access Levels     Personnel Access Levels     Personnel Access Levels	assword OL	2
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> Multi-Card Opening Settings-> Add	tegores Transferration	0
At most five persons can open the door simultaneously, but they must come from one group at least.		
*Current Door; TEST12-1 *Combination Name: Number of opening personnel in each group(the number in brackets indicates the actual personnel quantity *test:0 (JPerson)	in this group)	
Save and Continue  ✓ OK		
		>
2 Done	🔮 Internet	1

(3) For Multi-Card Opening, the number of people for combined door opening is up to 5. That in the brackets is the current actual number of people in the group. Set the number of people for combined door opening in a group, and click [OK] to complete editing.

## **6.3.4 Interlock Settings**

Interlock can be set for any two or more lock belong to one access control panel, so that when one door is opened, the others will be closed. And you can open one door only when others are closed.

Before interlock setting, please make sure the access controller is connected with door sensor according to the Installation Guide, and the door sensor have been set as NC or NO state.

#### Add interlock settings:

1. Click [Access Control System] - [Door configuration] - [Interlock settings] - [Add] to enter the interlock setting edit interface;

2. Select device to show interlock settings. Since one device can only correspond to one interlock setting record, when adding, interlocked devices can not be seen in the dropdown list of the device. When deleting established interlock information, the corresponding device will return to the dropdown list. The setting page will vary with the number of doors controlled by the selected device:

A one-door control panel has no interlock settings;

A two-door control panel: 1-2 two-door interlock settings;

A four-door control panel: 1-2 two-door interlock, 3-4 two-door interlock, 1-2-3 three-door interlock, 1-2-3-4 four-door interlock;

ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Be Edt Yew Fyrontes Iools Heb	1
Address 🕘 http://192.168.10.100.0007/data/access/AcchiterLock/	🛩 🚰 Ga 🛛 Litika 🤎
My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System Welcome.admin. © Settings @Help 32ModMy F ZKIDOCSSCAU	assword QLogout ^
Time Zones Holdars Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring	Reports
Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> Interlock Settings-> Add	980
The Interlock setting is designed to enable interlock between doors, so this setting is not available to a one-door access control panel. Any access control panel for which the interlock function has been set will not appear in the device list.	
«Device: 192.168.99.153 💌	
Interlock between doors 1 and 2:	
∰ Save and Controle	************
	2
4)	P Internet

3. Select interlock settings, tick an item (multiple interlocks can be selected as long as doors are not repeated), click [OK] to complete setting, and then the added interlock settings will be shown in the list.

For example, select 1-2-3-4 four-door interlock, if you want open door 3, doors 1, 2 and 4 needs to be closed.

**Note:** When editing, the device can not be modified, but the interlock setting can be modified. If interlock setting is not required for the device any more, the

interlock setting record can be deleted. When deleting a device record, its interlock setting record, if exist, will be deleted.

## 6.3.5 Anti-passback Settings

Currently anti-passback settings support in and out anti-passback. In some special occasions, it is required that the card holder who entered from a door by card punching must exit from the same door by card punching, with the entry and exit records strictly consistent. One who followed another to enter the door without card punching will be denied when trying to exit by card punching, and one who followed another to exit without card punching will be denied when trying to enter by card punching. When a person enters by card punching, and gives the card to another to try entering, the other person will be denied. The user can use this function just by enable it in the settings. This function is normally used in prisons, the army, national defense, scientific research, bank vaults, etc.

#### Add anti-passback settings:

1. Click [Access Control System] - [Door configurations] - [Anti-passback settings] - [Add] to show anti-passback setting edit interface;

2. Select device (N-door control panel), because one device can only correspond to one anti-passback setting record, so when adding, devices with anti-passback settings cannot be seen in the dropdown list. When deleting established anti-passback information, the corresponding device will appear in the dropdown list. The settings vary with the number of doors controlled by the device:

For one-door two-way and two-door two-way control panels, anti-passback between readers and between doors can be set. For two-door one-way and four-door one-way control panels, only anti-passback between doors can be set. The card holder enter from door A, he must exit from door B, this function is used for channel or ticket management.

Anti-passback settings of one-door control panel (two-way): Anti-passback between door readers;

Anti-passback settings of a two-door control panel (two-way):

Anti-passback between readers of door 1, anti-passback between readers of door 2, anti-passback between doors 1/2;

Anti-passback settings of a four-door control panel (one-way):

Anti-passback of doors 1-2, anti-passback of doors 3-4, anti-passback of doors 1/2-3/4, anti-passback of doors 1-2/3, anti-passback of doors 1-2/3/4;

3. Select anti-passback settings, and tick one item (anti-passback without repetition

of doors or readers can be subject to multi-choice). Click [OK] to complete setting, and the added anti-passback settings can be shown in the list.

**Note:** When editing, you can not modify the device, but can modify anti-passback settings. If anti-passback setting is not required for the device any more, the anti-passback setting record can be deleted. When deleting a device record, its anti-passback setting record, if exist, will be deleted.

## 6.3.6 Linkage Setting

Linkage setting means when an event is triggered at an input point of the access control system, a linkage action will occur at the specified output point to control such events as verification, opening, alarm and exception of the system and list them in the corresponding monitored report for view by the user.

#### Add linkage setting:

1. Click [Access Control System] - [Door configurations] - [Linkage setting] - [Add] to show the linkage setting interface;

2. Input linkage setting name (input linkage setting name before selecting device). After selecting device, corresponding linkage setting will appear (The system will first determine whether or not the device is successfully connected and has read extended device parameters such as auxiliary input quantity, auxiliary output quantity, door quantity and reader quantity. If the system has no available extended device parameters, it will remind the user of failing to set anti-passback. Otherwise, it will, shows linkage setting options according to the currently selected device, such as the door quantity, auxiliary input and output quantity):

3 7KAccess4.0 Access Security System Microsoft Internet Explorer		51	
Be DR Yew Favortes Icols Beb			12
Add mis (1) http://192.168.10.180.8087/data/access/AccLinkageD0/		💌 🔛 😡 🛛	264 ·**
My Panel Personnel Device Access Control System Welcome.admin. Setta	ings @Help @Modify	Password @Logo	ut ^
//////////////////////////////////////	test-aiure		
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personniel Access Levels	Real-Time Monitoring	Reports	
R Current Window: Access Control System -> Door Configuration -> Linkage Settings-> Ac	dd	9 9 8	
Please input, a linkage setting name and then select the device you want to set. Linkage s device more than once.	setting can be done for	each	
+Linkage Setting Name: Linkage1			
5 Auxiliary Port Settings			
*Trigger Condition: Normal Punch Oper -			
*Input Point Address: Any V			
Linkage Action			
+Output Point Address: Lock 1			
*Action Type: Close			
Save and Continue 🖌 OK O Cancel			
			-
•			2
Cone		P Internet	

The fields are as follows:

**Trigger Condition:** Please refer to <u>6.6 Real-time Monitoring</u> for the Real Time Events Description. Except Linkage Event Triggered, Cancel Alarm, Open Auxiliary Output, Close Auxiliary Output, and Device Start, all events could be trigger condition.

**Input Point Address:** Any, Door 1, Door 2, Door 3, Door 4, Auxiliary Input 1, Auxiliary Input 2, Auxiliary Input 3, Auxiliary Input 4, Auxiliary Input 9, Auxiliary Input 10, Auxiliary Input 11, Auxiliary Input 12 (the specific input point please refer to specific device parameters);

**Output Point Address:** Lock 1, Lock 2, Lock 3, Lock 4, Auxiliary Output 1, Auxiliary Output 2, Auxiliary Output 3, Auxiliary Output 4, Auxiliary Output 6, Auxiliary Output 8, Auxiliary Output 9, Auxiliary Output 10 (the specific output point please refer to specific device parameters);

Action Type: Close, Open, Normal Open. By default it is closed. To open, delay time shall be set, or Normal Close can be selected;

Delay: Ranges from 1-254s (This item is valid when the action type is Open)

3. After editing, click [OK] to save and quit, and the added linkage setting will be shown in the linkage setting list.

For example: If select "Normal Punching Card Open" as the trigger condition, and the input point is Door 1, the output point is Lock 1, the action type is Open, the delay is 60s, then when "Normal Punching Card Open" occurs at Door 1, the linkage

action of "Open" will occur at Lock 1, and door will be open for 60s.

Note: When editing, you can not modify the device, but can modify linkage

setting name and configuration. When deleting a device, its linkage setting record, if exist, will be deleted.

If system has set that the input point is a specific door or auxiliary input point under a trigger condition of a device, it will not allow the user to add (or edit) a linkage setting record where the device and trigger condition are the same but the input point is 'Any'.

On the contrary, if the device and trigger condition are the same, and the system has linkage setting record where the trigger point is 'Any', the system will not permit the user to add (or edit) a linkage setting record where the input point is a specific door or auxiliary input.

In addition, the system does not allow the same linkage setting at input point and output point in specific trigger condition.

The same device permits consecutive logical (as mentioned above) linkage settings.

# 6.4 Access Levels

Access levels means in a specific time period, which door or door combination can be opened through verification. However, the personnel combination that can open these doors via verification shall be set in personnel access levels settings. Please refer to <u>6.5 Personnel Access Levels</u> settings.

### Add access levels:

1. Click [Access Control System] - [Access levels] - [Add] to enter Add access levels edit interface;



2. Set parameters: access level name (no repetition), access control time zones, door combination;

3. Click [OK] to complete setting and quit, and added access levels will appear in the list.

# 💉 Note:

(1) Select the doors in the access levels as multi-choice, so you can select different doors in different control panels;

(2) Two levels with the same time zone and door combination are not allowed in the system.

# **6.5 Personnel Access Levels**

To assign access levels for the personnel to verify and get through, personnel access levels have two display modes:

Display as levels: Add/delete personnel for specific access levels.

**Display as personnel:** Add specified personnel into specified access levels, or delete specified personnel from specified access levels;

#### 1. Add/delete personnel to levels:

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Personnel access levels] - [Shown by Access levels], and click a level, then personnel having opening levels in the access level will be shown in the list on the right;

(2) Click [Add personnel] to pop up the Add personnel interface,

ZXAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	88	X
Bie Edit Yew Favorites Iools Help		<b>\$</b> 7
Agdress a http://192.168.10.180.8087/laccess/Empl.evelSetPage/		5 <b>H</b>
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System   Welcome,admin. Settings @ Help S/Mode	ify Password OLogout	^
ZAPCOSS 4D textfabre		
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Levels Real-Time Monitoring	g Reports	
Current Window: Access Control System -> Access levels ->Add Personnel		
Add personnel to the access level to give them access to the selected doors in the access level.		
Select Access Levels(s):wendang		
Search by Department     Search by Personnel No./Name     Search by Department		
Total 2 Entry/1 Page (0 (0 (0 (1 ) ) ) Selected Personnel (0)		
Personnel no. Name Gender Job title		
00000014		
000000012		
VOK OCancel		
		Y
		2
a) Done	🔮 Internet	- A

Select personnel to create the list on the right, and click [OK] to complete adding, and added personnel will appear in the list on the right;

(3) Select personnel, click [Delete from access level] to delete the personnel from the access level.

**Note:** When adding personnel, if selected personnel exist in the current access

level, the system can not add again.

#### 2. Edit access level for personnel:

(1) Click [Access Control System] - [Personnel access level settings] - [Shown by personnel] interface, click a person, and the list on the right will show the access level of the person;

(2) Click [Add access level] to pop up edit interface, select access level, click [OK] to complete editing, and the list on the right will show the access level;

(3) Select access level and click [Delete access level] to the person from the access level.

# 6.6 Real-time Monitoring

Monitor the statuses and real-time events of doors under the access control panels in the system in real-time, including normal events and exceptional events (including alarm events).

#### 1. Monitoring all:

The system will, by default, show the monitoring of all doors under the control panels within the current user's access level. The user can monitor one (or more) door(s) by [Area], [Control panel] or [Door].

**Remote Opening/Closing:** Including the operations of single door and all current doors. In single door operation, move the cursor to the door icon, click [Remote opening/closing] in the pop up menu. In all current doors operation, click [Close all current doors] in the main interface to fulfill the operation.

When you remote close the door, self-define the open time interval is enabled, 15 seconds by default. You can select [Enable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone], and the normal open time zone intraday will take effect. You can also set the door state to normal open directly, and no time zone intraday can effect the door state any more (namely normally open for 24 hours).

If you want to close the door, please select [Disable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone] first, to avoid other normal open time zones take effect and open the door. And then select [Remote Closing] to fulfill the operation.

**Note:** If the operation of remote opening/closing always return failure, please check the current list of devices. If there are too many offline devices, you need to check the network to ensure the operation proceed normally.

**Cancel all alarms:** Once alarming doors appear on the interface, the system will alarm. Click to cancel the alarms of the control panels for alarming doors. If Cancel Alarms is successful, the system will automatically stop alarming.

Note: If a control panel have multiple door alarms at the same time, you need

only execute one cancel operation at one of these door to cancel all the alarm in this control panel.

	COLUMN TWO IS NOT THE OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNER	RTMonkorRage/							Go Lini
Paries Pers	connel Device Acc	cess Control	System		,admin. O	Settings 🖗 Help	32Modify	Password	Logout
LKACCES	s4:0					testfa	-		
	Time Zones Hole	time Door D	onfiguration Acces	s Levels   Personne	d Access Lev			Feports	_
			rol System -> Real-Ti					and an other designed as a second sec	20
			cor statem -> real-to	ing manager of ->.ma	Printer, Mar				.940
Ionitor All	Door Status Me	onitoring							
-	Area All		Access Control Plane	10	♥ Door		3		
	*Open all ourren	t doors *Close	e all current doors						
rm Events					1				
rm Lvents						-	-		
rm Events	483 48	85 485	465	485	483	485	485	483	
rm Lyents			s 485	485 485	485	485			
rm Events	483 48		3 465	485	483	485		483	etected
rm Lyents.			Everx pour	8 485 485			Ali	rm Events D	_
rm Lyents.	Events Monitor	ring					Ali	rm Events D	_
m avents	P Events Monitor	ring Prose	Event port	Evert Descriptor	Card Nume	er (sc.(same)	<u>Ala</u> Invois	em Events D	_
m avents	Events Monitor	ring Disses 12,343	Eventeer E365	Duriss Resident Cont	01170 Auros 3375825	er fo.(Numo) 122an)	Ala Invoirsi In	em Events D Day ard	_
rm avents	20 Events Monitor Time 2013 36 38 17:40 45 2013 26 29 17:40 54	ring 12343 12249	Балт рат. 1946: 1949:	Enters Officerson Donas Passend Carn Romal Patch Oper	01000 Home 3375435 3375435	fan (fiarno) 11294) 11294)	Ala Investi In In	om Events D Day card Day card	_
rn Events	Events Monitor Tele 2015/3:817-045 2015/3:827-05 2015/3:827-012	ring 12343 12343 12343 12343	Event port R100: R100: R100:	Constant Officers of Constant Downs Pacaward Open Normal Patch Open Normal Patch Open	Caro Humo 3375425 3375425 3375425 3375425 3375425	fan (fiarno) 11294) 11294)	Ale Incode In In	ony card Chip card Chip card Chip card	_

Upon Door Status Monitoring, if the number of doors on the current interface  $\leq = 64$ , the system will, by default, show the doors in pictures to monitor door statuses. Once the number exceeds 64, the system will automatically list the doors.

When putting the cursor on a door, it will show relevant parameters and operations: device, door number, door name, remote opening, and remote closing. Icons in different colors represent statuses as follows:

Icon	1						
Status	Door alarming	Door closed when online	Door opened when online	Door sensor unset	Device banned	Door Offline	Door opening timeout

#### Personnel photo display:

If there is a person concerned in the real-time monitoring, and the corresponding photo is set before, then the photo will be displayed in real-time monitor. And the event name, trigger time, person name will be displayed on the photo.

#### **Event monitoring:**

The system automatically acquires monitored device event records, including normal access control events and exceptional access control events (including alarm events). Alarm events appear in red. Exceptional events excluding alarm events

appear in orange. Normal events appear in green.

Meanwhile, when an alarm event record appears on the event monitoring interface, the "Find alarm event" prompt will appear on the upper right corner. After the user clicks the link, the system will redirect to the alarm event monitoring interface by opening a new window (or tab page).

On the current event monitoring interface, the recent records are on the top, enabling the user to see without dragging the scrollbar. Meanwhile, the interface will show up to some 50 records.

The list is shown below.

								ALC: 127	
states and in the local division of the loca	12.168.10.180:8087/Jaccess	A Design of the local data and the		The base of	and				Go Links
State State State of	connel Device Aci	cess Control	System	welcome	admin. o	Settings 🖗 Help	E2Modify	Password 6	Logout
4KACCES	5410					testfa	1		
	Time zones Hold	lars Door Co	Infiguration Acces	s Levels   Personne	Access Lev			Reports	
	R Current Window	V: Access Contr	ol System -> Real-T	me Monitoring -> Mo	nitor All		-		(Q).
No.	Door Status Me	an Barlan							
Monitor All					Door		221		
(A)	Area All		Access Control Plani all current doors	B1	M Door				
larm Events	*Upen all ourren	LINCE SOLI		Participation of the state	1.00	12000	( Think The	1 March 1	
arm Events									
arm Events				485	485-	485	485	485-	
larm Events			465	485	483	485	485	485	
larm Events	483 44	85 485	463	485	485	485	485	483	
arm Events	485 48	85 485	465	<b>8</b> 465	485			483	
arm Events	483 44	85 485	Event point	8 485 485	485				
arm Events	485 48	85 485	485	485°me 485°me Energ Outstations Down Pacient Cart	485 337875				
arm Events	485 48 Events Monitor	85 485 ring Davce	Event point	and a second sec	a second second	er fo.(Name)	Incounts	Reatury Wenty P	
arm Events	485 48 Events Monitor 2013:37:40 46	55 485 ring 12341	Evert port 12345:	Durniss Password Open	3375825	er foc(fileros) 1228-03	invout s	China China And China China China	
arm Events	485 48 2 Events Monitor 2015-36 00 17-0 46 2015-36 00 27-0 55	ring 12343 12343	царана Бурок рока 12405 12405	Duress Password Open Normal Punch Open	3375875 3375875	fer: (fixerer) 112544) 112544)	innoute Ja Ja	City card City card City card	
arm Events	485 48 Events Monitor 103.5657406 203.5652405 203.5652405 203.5652405	12.343	Event porz 12.465 12.465 12.495 12.495	Duriss Reserved Open Nomal Parch Open Nomal Parch Open	3375875 3375875 3375875	fer: (fixerer) 112544) 112544)	Invoire Ja Ja Ja	Chiny Gard Chiny Gard Chiny Gard Chiny Gard	

Click [Find alarm event] on the upper right corner to access [Alarm event] interface, and the user will see alarm events monitored in [Event monitoring] before page turn and alarm events after the current time point.

#### 2. Alarm event:

Alarm event records are actually part of exception records, namely, alarm event records in exception records.

Alarm event monitoring only monitors alarm events acquired in system, and only monitors alarm events after the time of accessing the interface.

The alarm event monitoring list is shown below:



#### **Appendix: Real-Time Event Description:**

#### 1. Normal Events:

**Normal Punch Open:** In [Card Only] verification mode, the person has open door permission punch the card and trigger this normal event of open the door.

**Exit button Open:** User press the exit button to open the door within the door valid time zone, and trigger this normal event.

**Punch during Normal Open Time Zone:** At the normally open period (set to normally open period of a single door or the door open period after the first card normally open), or through the remote normal open operation, the person has open door permission punch the effective card at the opened door to trigger this normal events.

**First Card Normal Open Punch:** In [Card Only] verification mode, the person has first card normally open permission, punch card at the setting first card normally open period but the door is not opened, and trigger the normal event.

**Normal Open Time Zone Over:** After the setting normal open time zone, the door will close automatically. The normal open time zone include the normal open time zone in door setting and the selected normal open time zone in first card setting.

**Remote Normal Opening:** Set the door state to normal open in the remote opening operation, and trigger this normal event.

Disable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone: In door normal open state, punch the

effective card for five times near to the card reader (must be the same user), or select [Disable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone] in remote closing operation, and trigger this normal event.

**Enable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone:** If the intraday door normal open time zone is disabled, punch the effective card for five times near to the card reader (must be the same user), or select [Enable Intraday Normal Open Time Zone] in remote opening operation, and trigger this normal event.

**Multi-Card Open:** In [Card Only] verification mode, multi-card combination can be used to open the door. After the last piece of card verified, the system trigger this normal event.

**Emergency Password Open:** The password (also known as the super password) set for the current door can be used for door open. It will trigger this normal event after the emergency password verified.

**Open during Normal Open Time Zone:** If the current door is set a normally open period, the door will open automatically after the setting start time, and trigger this normal event.

Linkage Event Triggered: After the system linkage configuration take effect, trigger this normal event.

**Cancel Alarm:** When the user cancel the alarm of the corresponding door, and the operation is success, trigger this normal event.

**Remote Opening:** When the user opens a door from remote and the operation is successful, it will trigger this normal event.

**Remote Closing:** When the user close a door from remote and the operation is successful, it will trigger this normal event.

**Open Auxiliary Output:** In linkage action setting, if the user select Auxiliary Output for Output Point Address, select Open for Action Type, it will trigger this normal event when the linkage setting is take effect.

**Close Auxiliary Output:** In linkage action setting, if the user select Auxiliary Output for Output Point Address, select Open for Action Type, it will trigger this normal event when the linkage setting is take effect. And if the user closes the opened auxiliary output through the [Close Auxiliary Output] operation in [Door Setting], trigger this normal event too.

**Door Opened Correctly:** When the door sensor detects that the door has been properly opened, triggering this normal event.

**Door Closed Correctly:** When the door sensor detects that the door has been properly closed, triggering this normal event.

Auxiliary Input Disconnected: When the auxiliary input point disconnected, trigger this normal event.

Auxiliary Input Shorted: When the auxiliary input point short circuit, trigger this normal event.

**Device Start:** When the device start trigger this normal event, and this event can not display on the real-time monitor, but you can check it in the event report.

#### 2. Abnormal Events

**Too Short Punch Interval:** When the interval between two card punching is less than the set time interval, trigger this abnormal event.

**Door Inactive Time Zone (Punch Card):** In [Card Only] verification mode, the user has the door open permission, punch card but not at the door effective period of time, and trigger this abnormal event.

**Door Inactive Time Zone (Exit Button):** The user has the door open permission, punch card but not at the access effective period of time, and trigger this abnormal event.

**Illegal Time Zone:** The user with the permission of opening the current door, punches the card during the invalid time zone, and triggers this abnormal event.

Access Denied: The registered card without the access permission of the current door, punch to open the door, trigger this abnormal event.

**Anti-Passback:** When the anti-pass back setting of the system takes effect, triggers this abnormal event.

Interlock: When the interlocking rules of the system take effect, trigger this abnormal event.

**Multi-Card Authentication:** Use multi-card combination to open the door, the card verification before the last card (whether verified or not), trigger this normal event.

**Unregistered Card:** Refers to the current card is not registered in the system, trigger this abnormal event.

**Opening Timeout:** The door sensor detect that it is expired the delay time after opened, if not close the door, trigger this abnormal event.

**Card Expired:** The person with the door access permission, punch card to open the door after the effective time of the access control, can not be verified and will trigger this abnormal event.

**Password Error:** Use card plus password, duress password or emergency password to open the door, trigger this event if the password is wrong.

Failed to Close during Normal Open Time Zone: The current door is in normal open state, but the user can not close the door through [Remote Closing] operation, and trigger this abnormal event.

#### 3. Emergency Events

**Duress Password Open:** Use the duress password of current door verified and triggered alarm event.

**Opened Accidentally:** Except all the normal events (normal events such as user with door open permission to punch card and open the door, password open door, open the door at normally open period, remote door open, the linkage triggered door open), the door sensor detect the door is opened, that is the door is unexpectedly opened.

# **6.7 Access Control Reports**

Includes [All access control events], [Access control exception events] and [Personnel access levels] reports. You can select Export all and Export after query.

The user can generate statistics of relevant device data from access control reports, including card verification information, door operation information, and normal card punching information, etc.

About the Normal event and abnormal event, please refer to <u>6.6 Real-time</u> <u>Monitoring</u> for details.

**Abnormal Event:** Too Short Punch Interval, Door Inactive Time Zone (Punch Card), Door Inactive Time Zone (Exit Button), Illegal Time Zone, Access Denied, Anti-Passback, Interlock, Multi-Card Authentication, Unregistered Card, Opening Timeout, Card Expired, Password Error, Failed to Close during Normal Open Time Zone, Duress Password Open, Opened Accidentally, and Duress Password Open and Opened Accidentally are emergency events.

Verify mode: Only Card, Only Password, Card plus Password and others.

**Note:** Only event records generated when the user uses emergency password to open doors will include [Only password] verification mode.

#### All access control events

Because the data size of access control event records is large, you can view access control events as specified condition when querying. By default, the system shows the report of all access control events:

	gvorites Icols Help							
nis @ http://1%	2.168.10.180.8087/kaccess/Report	Form#lage/						💓 🚰 Ga 👘 Liti
Panel Pers	onnel Device Access D	antral System		Wek	come,admin. 🚳 Sett	ings @Help	Modify Pa	ssword @Logout
MACCESS	44.0					-	Pater .	
	Time Zones Holdars	Door Continues	Manager Levels	Dare	remail Access Levels			eports"
	R Current Window: Acce							(2)
			tor a conference a serve					
Il Access troi Events	Search	-	Sama and a start		1			
ID DI EYUNCS	Personnel No. :		Card Number:		Device:			
1	In/Out Status:		ent Description:		Venty Mode:	M	Psearch #	Advanced
ss Control	InyOut status:		ent Description:				d Clear	
Events	In All Events							
12	*Clear all event entries	Export Report			1	otal 1 Entry/	1 Page ()	81.8
ersonnel ass Levels	Time	Personnel numb	er name Card numbe	a Dem	e Event poet Minu, h	A Verify mak	te Infout stat	in Event desa
ESS LEVELS	2010-08-25 17:55:53	45632	14138677	36	56-1	Only card	In	Mormal Punci
	2010-08-25 17:55:33	45632	14138677	56	56-1	Only card	In	Mormal Punct
	2010-08-25 17:55-28	65432	14134048	56	56-1	Only card	In	Mormal Punct
	2010-08-25 17:55:02	45632	14138677	56	56-1	Only card	In	Mormal Punck
	2010-08-25 17:55:02 2010-08-25 17:54:41		14138677 14138677	56 56	56-1 56-1	Only card Only card	In In	Mormal Pund Mormal Pund
		45632						
	2010-08-25 17:54:41	45632 65432	14138677	56	56-1	Only card	In	Mormal Pund
	2010-08-25 17:54:41 2010-08-25 17:54:05	45632 65432	14138677 14134046	56 56	96-1 56-1	Only card Only card	In In	Mormal Pund Mormal Pund
	2010-08-25 17:54:41 2010-08-25 17:54:05	45632 65432	14138677 14134046	56 56	96-1 56-1	Only card Only card	In In	Mormal Pund Mormal Pund

#### Clear all event records:

Click [Clear all event records] to pop up a prompt. Click [OK] to clear records.

#### Access control exception events

You can view access control exception events in specified condition. The options are same as those of [All access control events].

	Fgvorites Icols Help						
a surface to the surface of the surf	2.168.10.180:8087/iaccess/Monito						🛩 🔛 Ga 🛛 Li
Panel Pers	connel Device Access (	Control System	Welco	me,admin. 4	Settings @Hel	D Modify Passy	word QLogou
KACCESS	3410					Tabue	
	Time-Zorus Helictare	Deer Continuente	n Access Levels Perso	voial Access I e		Monitoring Rea	artic 1
2			n -> Real-Time Monitoring -:				Φ
onitor All	P Alarm Events Monit	oring					
-	Time	Event point	Event Desiription Gar	d Number	No.(framin)	In/Out Status	Verify Mode
m Events	2010-00-25 17:42:52	192.168.99.153-2	Too Short Punch Interval	14247145	01234	In	Only card
m evenus	2010-08-25 17:42:37	192.168.99.153-1	Teo Short Punch Interval	14247143	01231	340	Only card
	2010-08-25 17:28:53	56-1	Unregistered Card	14138634		In	Only card
	2010-08-25 17:02:30	56-1	Unregistered Card	14134046		In	Only card

**Clear access control exception event records:** Clear the list of all access control exception events.

#### Personnel access level

View all access levels and all personnel under each level. The list items include access level name, access control time period, and door combination:

TKAccess4.0 Acc	cess Security System - Mic	rosoft Internet E	xplorer				
Ele Edit Yew P	igvorites Iools Help						<b>1</b>
Address 🕘 http://192	2.168.10.180:8087/iaccess/Empl.e	welReportPage/				💌 🛃 Go	Links **
My Panel   Perso	onnel   Device   Access	Control   Syste	m	Welcome,admin. 🔶 s	ettings 😣 Help 😒 Modify F	Password OL	ogout 个
ZKACCESS					testFailure		21
	Time Zones Holidays	Door Configur	ation Access Levels	Personnel Access Leve	Is Real-Time Monitoring	Reports	
10.	Pa Current Window Ac	cess Control Sys	item -> Reports -> Peri	onnel Access Level			Φ
All Access	E Search						
Control Events	Access Level N	lame:	Tin	e Zone Name:	✓ <u>Search</u> #	Advanced	
Access Control	Personnel Access L	evels					_ 1
Exception Events	•Export Report				Total 1 Entry/1 Page 🖲 🤅		9
1	Access level name	Time zones	Door co	mbination	Personnel		
Personnel	wendang	TEST	test11-1,test11-2,test	11-3,test11-4	No personnel information is	set yet.	
Access Levels							
<							2
<li>Done</li>						Internet	

# 7. System Settings

System settings primarily include assigning system users (such as company management personnel, registrar, access control administrator) and configuring the roles of corresponding modules, managing database, such as backup, initialization, and setting system parameters and operation logs, etc.

# 7.1 User Management

#### 1. Role management:

During daily use, the super user needs to assign new users having different levels. To avoid individual setting for each user, roles having certain levels can be set in role management, and then be assigned to specified users, including the levels set for five major functional modules of personnel, device, access control and system setting. The system's default super user has all levels, and can create new users and set corresponding levels as required.

#### **Role setting steps:**

(1) Click [Add] to enter role setting interface;

3 7KAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer			×
Bie Edit View Figvorites Icols Belp			27
	💌 🔁 Go		is <b>*</b>
My Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System   Welcome, admin. Settings @ Help St Modify Passy	rord OL	ogout	^
ZKADD5S540			
testFalure			
Role User Database Management System Parameter Log Entries			
🏁 Current Window: System -> Role-> Add	9 0	8	
Role is a combination of a group of rights. A user of a certain role has all the rights contained in the role. To assign a role to a user, go to the New User or Edit interface.			
*Name:			
Permissions: Personnel Device Access Control System			
B Personnel			
e 🗇 Department			
- Add			
Browse			
- Modify - Export			
Import			
Delete			
Personnel			
Add			
Save and Continue VOK O Cancel			
Save and Continue 💙 OK 🥝 Cancel			
¢			>
e) Cone 🔮	internet		

(2) Set name, select your desired role setting item, and tick levels to be configured for users of different levels;

(3) After setting, click [OK] to save and return to the list, and added role settings will be shown in the list.

#### 2. User management:

Add new users to the system, and assign user roles (levels).

#### Add user:

1. Click [Add], enter new user information, where items with [\*] are mandatory. The parameters are as follows:

KAccess4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explore Edit View Figvorites Tools Help	
ess (a) http://192.168.10.180/8087/data/auth/User/	V 🖸 Go Lin
Panel   Personnel   Device   Access Control   System	Welcome,admin.
Role User Database Management Syst	
Current Window: System -> User-> Add	🍄 🕜 🖸
If check box 'Active' is not selected then the	user will be disabled and cannot log in to the system!
Vsername: Required. 30 characters	or fewer. Letters, numbers and @/./+/-/_, characters
*Password: [****** The length must be long	er than 4 digits but shorter than 18 digits. The default password is 111111.
Confirm Password: The length must be longe	er than 4 digits but shorter than 18 digits. The default password is 111111.
First Name:	
Last Name:	
E-mail Address:	
Active: 🗹 Designates whether the	user can log into this admin site.
Super User: 🕑 Designates that this use	r has all permissions without explicitly assigning them.
Save and Continue VOK O Cano	8
one	Internet

Username: Not more than 30 characters, only using letters, numbers or characters;

**Password:** The length must be more than 4 digits and less than 18 digits. The default password is 111111;

Authorize Department: If you select no department, you will possess all department rights by default;

Authorize Area: If you select no area, you will possess all area rights by default;

Enter First Name, Last Name and E-mail Address;

Active: Designates whether the user can log into the admin site. Tick to enable it;

**Super User:** Designates that this user has all permissions without explicitly assigning them. Tick it to be a super user without selecting a role;

Select Role: Non-super user needs to select a role. By selecting a preset role

61

configuration, this user will have the levels configured for the role.

2. After editing, click [OK] to complete user adding, and the user will be shown in the list.

To modify existing user, click [Edit] behind the user name, and enter edit interface. After modification, click [OK] to save and return.

# 7.2 Database Management

The homepage of the system shows database backup history. The system allows database backup, restoration and initialization.

### 1. Database backup path configuration:

Select [Database backup path configuration] in the [Server Controller] operation menu, the edit interface appears.

Click [Browse] to select the backup path, click [Save] to save the selection and quit.

# 💉 Note:

(1) In software installation process, it will prompt to set the database backup path. If you haven't set the backup path, the operation of backup database can't be executed (The server for other computer to access, need to set the backup path in the server firstly).

(2) Proposal that the database backup path and the present system installed path not be under the same disk. Don't set the path to the root of a disk or the desktop.

#### 2. Backup database:

Periodically backup the system's database to ensure data security. To use the backed up data, just restore the data.

(1) Click [Backup database] to enter the backup interface;

3 7XAccess 4.0 Access Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer
Be Edt yew Fevortes Icols Beb 🦧
Address 🌒 http://152.168.10.180.6067/data/dbapp/DtBackupLog/
My Panel         Personnel         Device         Access Control         System         Welcome,admin.         & Settings         @ Help         SModify Password         Q Logout.         Z           ZMDCGSSSQU         attract and settings         Belo         User         Database Management:         System Parameter         Log Entries         Betries         Betries </th
Current Window: System -> Database management ->Backup Database
Backup Databasetthe Database service and the present system must be installed in the same computer, oracle Database is unsupported temporarily. If backup failed, please refer to the FAQs of the User Manual.
© Barkup New ® Scheduled Backup © Cannol Scheduled Backup
In Scheduled Backup
Start from(2011-3-115:46:49 📄   🔘 Even/2 day
✓ Of. © Cancel
<

(2) Select from backup now, scheduled backup and cancel scheduled backup. Scheduled backup can set backup every several days since a start time;

(3) Click [OK]. For Backup now, it will return after backup. For scheduled backup, it will backup as scheduled.

# 🙇 Note:

(1) After database backing up, the value under "Whether backup successful" will change to "Yes" or "No". "Yes" indicates database backing up successfully, otherwise, the back up operation is failed.

(2) We recommended backing up the database after you create the personnel file, device information or part of access control level settings.

(3) The system not support to backup Oracle database, if you need to backup, please uses the specific Oracle backup tools.

#### 3. Restore Database

Select [Restore Database] in the [Server Controller] operation menu, the following interface appears.

Click [Browse] to select a successfully backed up database from the backup database list, click [Start] begin the database restoration.

# 🔊 Note:

(1) Don't close any command window prompt during the database restore process.

(2) On the same server, please don't plan multiple scheduled backup to avoid adding to the server load.

#### 4. Initialize database:

Initialize database is to restore data to system initialization status. Initialized data in the database will be deleted. Please operate with care.

Click [Initialize database] to enter edit interface, select one or several datasheets to initialize, and click [OK] to complete initialization and return.



#### For example:

Select to initialize access level: After selection, it will initialize access control time periods, access control holidays and access levels. All contents on these three pages will restore initial statuses;

Select to initialize door settings: After selection, it will initialize all interlock settings, anti-passback settings, linkage settings, first-card opening settings, and multi-card opening settings (including personnel group of multi-card verification);

Select to initialize events: After selection, it will initialize all real-time monitoring records;

Select to initialize access control: After selection, it will initialize all settings and information in the access control system, including the above three items, and only reserve system default settings;

**Select to initialize devices:** After selection, it will initialize all device information in the system (including access control). If the device is an access control panel, corresponding device parameters and door information will be deleted.

**Note:** If the device is still in normal use, please initialize database cautiously,

especially when involving access level-related departments and personnel, access levels, door settings, areas, devices, users and roles. It is recommended that if there are still devices in use after database initialization, the user shall [Synchronize all data] for the setting to avoid unexpected errors.

# 7.3 System Parameters

The system homepage shows the system parameter list: Parameter name, Parameter value, Description, and Related operation.

TKAccess4.0 Sec	curity System - Microsoft Internet Ex	plorer		
Ele Edt Yew F	gvorites Ipols Help			<b>*</b>
Address 🕘 http://192	. 168.12.86/data/base/AppOption/		✓ Э	Go Links **
My Panel   Perso	onnel   Device   Access Control	System Welcome,admin.	Settings Help Modify Password	Logout 🔷
ZKACCESS	40			
	Role User Database Manage	ment System Parameter Log Entries		
	Current Window: System -> S	ystem parameter		Φ
-				
Log Entries	B.			
			Total 2 Entry/1 Page 🖲 📀 🖲 🚺	
Export	Parameter name	Parameter value	Description	
	browse title	ZKAccess4.0 Security System	Browser Title	
	company	Company Name	Company Name	
				×
<				>
<ol> <li>Done</li> </ol>			Internet	.4

# 7.4 Log Records

The default homepage of system log records shows log records of all operations. Since large data size, you can use query function to search desired log records. For

details, see Appendix 1 Common Operation.
## 8. Appendices

## **Appendix 1 Common Operation**

#### 1. Personnel selection

In this system, this dialog box is used for all modules using personnel selection:

	cess Security System - Microsoft Internet Explorer	88
	fgvorites Iools Help	
successive in the local division of the	2.168.10.180.8087/laccess/Empl.evelSetPage/	💌 📴 Go Lever
ZARCESS		Settings @Help @Modify Password @Logout *
	Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels Personnel Access Level	Ke Real-Time Monitoring Reports
	PCurrent Window: Access Control System -> Access levels ->Add Personnel	
	Add personnel to the access level to give them access to the selected doors in the acc	cess level.
	Select Access Levels(s):wendang	
	© Search by Department. O Search by Personnel No, Name	
	Total 2 Entry/1 Page () ( ) ( ) Selected Personnel (0)	15. Clear
	Personnel no.   Name   Gender   Job title	
	000000014	
	00000012	
	✓ OK O Caccel	
<		9 Internet

You can search personnel in two ways:

1) Search by department. Tick the check box before a department in the department list of the pull-down menu to select all personnel of the department. If [Select all personnel under the department] is ticked, all personnel in the department will be selected and shown in the list box of the currently selected personnel;

2) Search by personnel number/name. Enter the name or employee number of the person to be selected in the query box, and click query to show the eligible person in the list box.

When personnel are selected into the list box, if it is required to delete one or more persons, just cancel the tick of the check box before the personnel. To select or unselect all personnel in the list, click the 'Select all' check box under the list.

To cancel all personnel for reselection, click Clear.

#### 2. Select date

Click the pull-down menu to select date:

Edit Yew Figvorites Iools Help			
s 🛃 http://192.168.10.180:8087/data/laccess/AccHolidays/		~	e 🔁 😧
anel Personnel Device Access Control System	Welcome,admin. 🔶 Settings 🤅	Help Modify Passwo	rd OLogo
Access40			
Time Zones Holidays Door Configuration Access Levels R	ersonnel Access Levels Real-	Time Monitoring Report	8
Current Window: Access Control System -> Holidays-> Add			9 🕜 🖬
Each holiday type cannot contain more than 32 holidays. A holid If a holidaylasts only one day, set its end date the same as the Annual cycle means the dates of a holidaywill not change over a	start date.	iys.	
*Name:			
*Type: Holiday Type 1			
*Start Date: 04 4 March 2011	P 19		
*End Date: M T W T F S	S		
*Annual Cycle: No 🗸 28 1 2 3 4 5	6		
Remarks: 7 8 9 10 11 12 14 15 16 17 18 15	2 13		
14 15 16 17 18 15 21 22 23 24 25 26			
Save and Continue VOK 28 29 30 31 1 2			

Click on year to activate the scroll button for year selection, and click  $\triangleleft$  or  $\bowtie$  button to select an earlier or a later year. Click  $\triangleleft$  or  $\bowtie$  button to select an earlier or a later month, and click the desired date.

#### 3. Import (taking importing personnel table as an example):

If there is an electronic personnel file, which may be the information of the personnel or access control, attendance or human resources system of another brand, you can import it into this system through the [Import] function.

(1) Click [Import] to show the import edit interface:

Import		8
Select Import Table	Personnel	
Import File	Brown	
File Format	⊙xLS file ⊙ TXT file, CSV file	
Delimiter	Smart Search      Others	
Title	O Untitled      There is a title, which is in the No. 1 row	
Start row	From No. 2 row	
File Code	Simplified 💌	
Upload		
Correspondence	e between entries and table fields	
Correspondeno Data Error Processing Wa		ported entries
Data Error Processing Wa		

#### **Description of items:**

Select import table: Currently the system supports the import of department table and personnel table;

Import file: Click [Browse] to select the file to be imported;

File format: Select the format of the file to be imported;

**Delimiter:** The user select from smart search or others, such as comma, semicolon or blank;

**Title:** Select and set whether or not the original file contains a title. If so, enter which row the title is in;

**Start row:** The row from which importing starts (namely, which row of the original file the data in the first row is in);

File code: Select the code that the original file uses, being Simplified Chinese or English;

**Data error processing way:** Select "skip the erroneous row, and continue to import", or "interrupt import and clear imported entries";

Associated entry processing: Select "auto add to associate table" or "skip the current entry without adding associated entry".

(2) Click [Browse] to select the file to be imported;

69

(3) Click [Open] button, and the file format will be automatically shown. Determine delimiter, title, start row and file code, and click [Upload] to show the following window:

	Iools Help					
http://192.168.10	0.180:8087/data/personnel	(Engloyee)				60
a Import					8	
Select Impo Table	Personnel	×				a)
Import File	C:\Documents	and Si Browse				
File Format	OxLS file O	TXT file, CSV file				ance
Delimiter	<ul> <li>Smart Sear</li> </ul>	ch 🔘 Others				
Title	O Untitled O	There is a title, which is i	in the No. 1	row		
Start row	From No. 2	row				
File Code	Simplified	v				۲
Corresponde	] ence between entrie	s and table fields				
_		s and table fields		P		
_	ence between entrie		Department number	Department n		
Corresponde	ence between entrie		_			
Corresponde file header file record	ence between entrie	Name 1001001	_	Department n		
Corresponde file header file record	Personnel no. 001001001	Name 1001001	Department number	Department na Department Na		
Corresponde file header file record	Personnel no. 001001001	Name     1001001     Name	Department number 1 Personnel No.	Department n Department N Mobile Phone	port and clear exported entries	
Corresponde file header file record table filed Oata Error Processing	Personnel no. 001001001 Department.Depar	Name     1001001     Name	Department number 1 Personnel No.	Department ni Department Ni Mobile Phone		,
Corresponde file header file record table filed Oata Error Processing	Personnel no. 001001001 Department.Depar	Name 1001001 Name Skip the erroneous row	Department number 1 Personnel No.	Department ni Department Ni Mobile Phone		

(4) In the table below [correspondence between entries and table fields], [file header] is an item row in the original file, [file record] is a data row in the original file, [table field] is an item in the current system. Select corresponding fields in the system from pull-down menus, and unwanted data can be unchecked.

(5) Select data error processing way and associated entry processing, click [Import], and the system will automatically start importing data. When the system prompts that data import is successful, the newly imported data will be shown in the personnel list.

### 💉 Note:

(1) When importing department table, repeated numbers do not affect import, and can be modified manually;

(2) When importing personnel table, if there is no personnel number or personnel number is "0", the import operation can't execute. If you need import the personnel gender, please use "M" represent male and "F" represent female, then execute import operation.

#### 4. Export data (taking exporting personnel list as an example):

(1) Click [export] to show the edit interface:



When the data size is large, it is recommended to select [Select number of entries to export] to expedite export and reduce system load.

(2) Select the format of exported file: If PDF format is selected there will be no file code option (namely, no differentiation between Simplified and Traditional Chinese). Click [Export] to directly show the exported file.

If TXT or CSV format is selected, then file codes include Simplified and Traditional Chinese, but Traditional Chinese code can be completely exported only in the operating system in Traditional Chinese. The system prompts Open or Save:

Select [Open] to directly show the list. Select [Save] to pop up the [Save as] dialog box. Determine file name and save type, and select save path. Select [Cancel] to return.

(3) Return to the initial edit interface, and click [Return] to return to the personnel interface.

## 💉 Note:

(1) When importing department table, repeated numbers do not affect import, and can be modified manually;

(2) Exported table is the list currently shown, being the list of queried or displayed result;

(3) Up to 10,000 latest records can be exported.

#### 5. View log records (taking personnel log as an example):

(1) Click log records to show the following:

	Fgvorites <u>1</u> ools 12.168.10.180:8087/		kovee!					M 🔁 Go 🛛
	sonnel Device				Welcome,a	idmin. 🔶 Settin	gs 😌 Help 😒 Mo	dity Password OLogo
	54.U						IENI 121 alun	
	Department	& Logs			_		-	
	Current V	User name		Action fla	ig 💌			Φ
Add	I Search				Total 3 E	Entry/1 Page 🗷 🤅		
	Personnel	User A	lation time	Object type	Object description	Action identificati	on Change mess	Search MAdvance
-	Mobile Phy	admin 2011-	03-01 14:51:53	00	000000014	Add		Clear
g Entries			03-01 11:31:36			Modify	0000000(->6	
2		admin 2011-	03-01 11:16:05	00	000000012	Add		
	• <u>Adjust dep</u>							
	Perso							rity number Educatio
100	0000							
	0000							
		<						
		e						
								2
	<u>×</u>							

(2) Enter query condition, click [query] to show the list, click [Clear], clear query condition, and return to the initial interface.

## 💉 Note:

1. The log records only show the operation log in the current operation module;

2. Log records under some operation menus can be viewed only when entering the edit interface.

For example, from [Access Control System] - [Door Configuration] - [Door Management], click [Edit] under "Related operation" of a device to enter the edit interface, and click [Log records] on the upper right corner of the interface to view the operation log.

#### 6. Query function (taking personnel information query as an example):

Common query: The user can directly select the item to be queried from [Common query] on my work panel, or enter a module for specific query.

Take personnel query as an example:

Contractor Device Access Control System      Welcome.admin.      Settings     Help: %Modify Password      Contractor      Personnel Issue Card      Personnel Issue Card		Favorites Lools Help							
ADDECSSENU	Mtp://1	92.168.10.180.8087/data/personre	n(Employee/					2	🔁 Ga 🛛
Construct         Personnel         Issue Curd           Add         Image: Card Number: Image: Card I	inel Pers	sonnel Device Access	Control System	Web	comie, adm	in. © Setting	s 9 Help 🖻	Modify Passwor	d @Logou
	Acces								
Correct Window: Personnel      Personnel      Personnel      Card Number:     Personnel No:     Personne No:     Personne No:     Personnel No:     Personnel No:     Per			Property lines		_		100		
Search Personnel No. : Card Number: Card Number: Social Security Number: Card									
Add Personen No. 1 Name: Card Number: Planath @ Advance Mobile Phone: Department Name: Social Society Number: Class Mobile Phone: Department Name: Social Society Number: Class Mobile Class Mobile Class More	30	For Current Window: Per	sonnel -> Personnel						¢.
Hoble Phone: Department Name: Social Security Namber: Class		In Search							
Mobile Phone:         Department Name:         Social Security Number;         If clear           *	****	Personnel No. :	Name	e:		Card Number		Otearch A	Advanced
3/         Stable OPhoto Total 2 Entry/1 Page 8 (* ) 8 (* ) 8         9           0 Dataset on Total 2 Entry/1 Page 8 (* ) 8 (* ) 8         9         9         0	100	Mobile Phone:	Department Name	0:	Social Se	ecurity Number			CIRCLE CARE
5 >	P	000000012	(A)						
aport 0000000014 1 (one-any K 2	-								
s ,	-		1						
6	iport		1						
5	port		1						
s	iport.		1						
s ,	iport.		1						
6	éport.		1						
s a	port		1						
	port		1						
	ipert.		1						
	port		3						2

Enter query condition, click Query, and the query result will be shown below:

2 ZKAccess4.0 Acc	cess Security System Micr	osoft Internet Explorer				
Ele Edit Yem P	gvorites Ipols Help					R.
Address Mtp://192	168.10.180.8087/data/personve	(Engloyee/				👻 🚰 Ga 🛛 Litika 🤎
My Panel Perso	ownel Device Access C	ontrol System	Wek	ome,admin. 🔶 Sett	ings @Help @2)	Addity Password @Logout 单
ZKACCESS						un 2
	Department Personnel	dissue Card				
0	Current Window: Per	sonnel -> Personnel				c)
Add	In Search					
Log Entries	Personnel No. : 2 Mobile Phone:	Nam Department Nam		Card Numi Social Security Numi		Piearch ∰ådvanced ✔ Clear
Cog Entries	2					
Import	*Adjust department *Is	Total 1 Entry/1 Pa				
in port.	Personnet no. 1					recenty number Educatio
1	000000012	1	complany			
Export						
<	¢					
Done :						🔮 Internet

Advanced query: Click [Advanced] icon to show advanced query interface (taking personnel information advanced query as an example).

TKAccess4.0 Acc	cess Security S	ystem - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Ele Edt Yew F	gvorites _looks	Rep	<b>*</b>
		(data(personnel/Employee/	💌 🛃 Go Links 🧮
My Panel   Perso			Help Modify Password @Logout ^
	40		PALIPHINE 2
	Departmen	Advanced Query	8
	Current	Select Search Field Select Condition Range	Φ
Add	E Search	Personnel No. 💌 contain 💌 1	
	Personne	Conditions Selected	Search MAdvanced
Log Entries	Mobile F	Personnel No. contain 1	Clear
	1.		
	•Adjust de		
	E Per		al security number Educatio
and the			
		Add Clear Search Return	·
		*Note: One field and one condition can be selected only once.	
	<		×
4			× .
Done			Internet

(1) Select the query field in the [Select query field] pulls down menu;

(2) Select the condition in the pull down menu such as equal to null, contain, meet any, equal to etc.

(3) Input the query value in the [Range] field;

(4) Click [Add] to add this query information to the [Selected condition] list, the multiple choice of query condition is allowed. But one field and one condition can be selected only once.

Click [Query], the query result display on the list.



The query functions of each menu in the system are similar, differing in that query conditions are different, and the user can enter as prompted.

# Appendix 2 END-USER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR THIS SOFTWARE

Important - read carefully:

This End-User License Agreement ("EULA") is a legal agreement between you (either an individual or a single entity) and the mentioned author of this Software for the software product identified above, which includes computer software and may include associated media, printed materials, and "online" or electronic documentation ("SOFTWARE PRODUCT"). By installing, copying, or otherwise using the SOFTWARE PRODUCT, you agree to be bound by the terms of this EULA. If you do not agree to the terms of this EULA, do not install or use the SOFTWARE PRODUCT.

#### SOFTWARE PRODUCT LICENSE

The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is protected by copyright laws and international copyright treaties, as well as other intellectual property laws and treaties. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is licensed, not sold.

1. GRANT OF LICENSE. This EULA grants you the following rights: Installation and Use. You may install and use an unlimited number of copies of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT.

Reproduction and Distribution

You may reproduce and distribute an unlimited number of copies of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT; provided that each copy shall be a true and complete copy, including all copyright and trademark notices, and shall be accompanied by a copy of this EULA. Copies of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT may be distributed as a standalone product or included with your own product.

#### 2. DESCRIPTION OF OTHER RIGHTS AND LIMITATIONS.

Limitations on Reverse Engineering, De-compilation, and Disassembly

You may not reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the SOFTWARE PRODUCT, except and only to the extent that such activity is expressly permitted by applicable law notwithstanding this limitation.

#### Separation of Components

The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is licensed as a single product. Its component parts may not be separated for use on more than one computer.

#### Software Transfer

You may permanently transfer all of your rights under this EULA, provided the recipient agrees to the terms of this EULA.

#### Termination

Without prejudice to any other rights, the Author of this Software may terminate this EULA if you fail to comply with the terms and conditions of this EULA. In such event, you must destroy all copies of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT and all of its component parts.

#### Distribution

The SOFTWARE PRODUCT may not be sold or be included in a product or package which intends to receive benefits through the inclusion of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT may be included in any free or non-profit packages or products.

#### 3. COPYRIGHT.

All title and copyrights in and to the SOFTWARE PRODUCT(including but not limited to any images, photographs, animations, video, audio, music, text, and "applets" incorporated into the SOFTWARE PRODUCT), the accompanying printed materials, and any copies of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT are owned by the Author of this Software. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT is protected by copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Therefore, you must treat the SOFTWARE PRODUCT like any other copyrighted material except that you may install the SOFTWARE PRODUCT on a single computer provided you keep the original solely for backup or archival purposes.

#### LIMITED WARRANTY

#### NO WARRANTIES.

The Author of this Software expressly disclaims any warranty for the SOFTWARE PRODUCT. The SOFTWARE PRODUCT and any related documentation is provided "as is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied, including, without limitation, the implied warranties or merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or non-infringement. The entire risk arising out of use or performance of the SOFTWARE PRODUCT remains with you.

#### NO LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES.

In no event shall the author of this Software be liable for any damages whatsoever (including, without limitation, damages for loss of business profits, business interruption, loss of business information, or any other pecuniary loss) arising out of the use of or inability to use this product, even if the Author of this Software has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

Acknowledgment of Agreement

I have carefully read and understand this Agreement, Radiate, Inc.'s Privacy Policy Statement.

IF YOU ACCEPT the terms of this Agreement:

I acknowledge and understand that by ACCEPTING the terms of this Agreement.

IF YOU DO NOT ACCEPT the terms of this Agreement

I acknowledge and understand that by refusing to accept these terms, I have rejected this license agreement and therefore have no legal right to install, use, or copy this Product or the Licensed Software that it incorporates.

## **Appendix 3 FAQs**

#### Q: How can my work panel be unique?

A: The user can customize the work panel: 1. Click [Custom work panel] to pop up a dialog box, cancel the tick of your undesired module (by default the system ticks all), and Confirm. Then the custom module will appear; 2. Or directly click the "—]" icon on a module to minimize, and click " $\times$ " to close the module. Click the column bar to drag and adjust the module's position; 3. If required to return to the default work panel, click [Restore work panel] to refresh and return to the system default.

#### Q: How to use a card issuer?

A: Connect the card issuer to PC through USB port, and then select individual personnel card issue or batch card issue. Move the cursor to the card number input box, and punch the card on the card issuer, then the card number will be automatically shown in the input box.

#### Q: What is the use of role setting?

A: Role setting has the following uses: 1. To set unified level for the same type of users newly added, just directly select this role when adding users; 2. When setting system reminder, and determine which roles can be viewed.

## **Q:** How to operate if I want to set accounts for all personnel of the Company's Financial Department?

A: First, create a new role in system setting and configure the functions to be used for this role. Then add a user, set user information, and select the user's role, thus adding a new account. For other accounts, do the same.

#### Q: What is the use of blacklist?

A: A blacklisted personnel can not achieve departure restoration, namely, this person can not be employed by the Company any longer. To modify, just modify departure information on the departure interface.

#### Q: How to adjust the department of a person?

A: There are the following ways to adjust personnel department: 1. In personnel list, click personnel number or click "Edit" under related operation item to show personnel details, and modify personnel department in the department item; 2. In personnel list, check the personnel requiring department adjustment, click "Adjust department", and a dialog box will pop up, then modify the department; 3. On personnel transfer interface, click Add to pop up the edit interface, select personnel, and check department in the transfer field, and complete other information, thus

79

completing transfer.

#### Q: How to set access levels for visitors?

A: Setting access levels is as follows: 1. In the system, add these personnel, and enter relevant information; 2. Select access levels suitable for them. If there are no suitable levels, it is required to enter the access control system to add relevant settings; 3. Set valid time, namely, the start and end dates when they need to use access levels.

#### Q: What are the ways to cancel personnel access control settings?

A: There are the following ways to cancel personnel access control settings: 1. Close access control only: In the personnel list, click personnel number or click "Edit" under related operation item to show personnel details, and delete access levels and Personnel Group of Multi-Card Verification in access control settings; 2. Delete personnel: In the personnel list, click "Delete" under related operation item of personnel, or tick a personnel and click the "Delete" above to delete this person from the system. Corresponding access control information will be deleted; 3. In "Personnel access levels settings", delete access levels of personnel, and in "Personnel Group of Multi-Card Verification", delete Multi-Card Opening levels.

#### Q: How to set access control holidays?

A: Access control holidays have three types of 1, 2 and 3. Take New Year's Day as an example: 1. In access control holidays, add a holiday of "New Year's Day". Set the holiday type as 1, and the start and end dates of the holiday are both January 1; 2. During the access control time period, add an access control time zone, set the three access control intervals of this holiday type 1. For example, set access control interval 1 as 8:00-20:00, and intervals 2 and 3 as null, namely Normal Close; 3. Apply this access control time zone to access levels; 4. Set personnel with levels for the access levels.

## Q: In Windows Server 2003, why the IE browser displayed error when access the system, how to solve it?

A: This problem occurs because that Server 2003 has [Security Configuration Option] settings. If you want access the system, please configure it as follows: click Start – Control Panel – Add or Remove Program, select [Add and remove Windows components] in the interface and click [Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration] option, cancel the tick before it. Then click [Next] to remove it from the system. Open the system again the browser will access the system properly.

#### Q: If backing up or restoring the database fails, the possible reason?

A: Please check the system environment variables [path], if the database installation path (For example, MS SQL Server installation path maybe is: C:\Program Files\Microsoft SQL Server\90\Tools\Binn; For MySQL, it is like: C:\Program

Files\MySQL\MySQL Server 5.1\bin) is exist. If not, you need to add it manually. Otherwise, the antivirus or firewall software may stop the execution of backing up or restoring command, if the security prompt pops up, please select "Always Permitted". And the damaged database can also lead to backup error, please repair or restore the database.